
CITY COUNCIL BUSINESS MEETING AGENDA 

1705 MAIN STREET, DAPHNE, AL 

 SEPTEMBER 19, 2011 

BUSINESS MEETING 

6:30 P.M.                                                                           

 
 1.  CALL TO ORDER 

 2.  ROLL CALL/INVOCATION / PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE       

 

3.  APPROVE MINUTES:     Council meeting minutes / September 6, 2011      

                                                   Council Work Session Minutes / September 12, 2011 

 

CERTIFICATE OF CONGRATULATIONS:  Mr. Rich Wright 

 

RESIGNATION OF MAYOR :     Accept Resignation of the Mayor 

                                                           Nominations to fill position of Mayor  

                                                          

4. REPORT STANDING COMMITTEES: 
    A.  FINANCE COMMITTEE / Boulware 

           Review minutes / September 12
th
  

1.) Ordinances: 
a.) Daphne Utilities Real Property Transfer / Ordinance 2011-65 

b.) Lodging Tax Appropriation:  Bay Front Richard Scardamalia Pavilion Building: Stair Replacement /     

c.)  Ordinance 2011-66 
d.) Extending Fiscal Year 2011 Budget Authority / Ordinance 2011-67 

 

2.) Resolutions: 

a.) Bid Award:  2011-Z-Intersection Improvements at U.S. 98 & C.R. 64 /  

   Resolution 2011-65 

b.) Declare City Property Surplus / Resolution 2011-66 

 

3.) Financial Reports: 

a.) Treasurers Report / August 31, 2011 

b.) Statement of Revenues and Expenditures / July 31, 2011 

c.) Sales & Use Tax Collections / July 31, 2011 

d.) Lodging Tax Collections / July 31, 2011 

e.) FY 2012 General Fund Budget Summary 

      

    B.  BUILDINGS & PROPERTY COMMITTEE -  Lake   

          Review minutes / September 7
th
  

       

 C.  PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE –   Boulware  

    D.  CODE ENFORCEMENT/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE  -  Boulware     
    E.  PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE / SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY  -  Yelding           

           Review minutes / August 15
th
  

           Need Environmental Advisor Board members 

 

5. REPORTS OF SPECIAL BOARDS & COMMISSIONS:  

    A.  Board of Zoning Adjustments – Jones  

    B.  Downtown Redevelopment Authority – Barnette   

          Need one (1) member   

    C.  Industrial Development Board – Yelding  

          Need One (1) member 

    D.  Library Board – Lake            
          Review minutes / July 7

th
  

          Review minutes / August 4
th
  

          MOTION:  To reappoint Windrilla Longmire and Andrew LaPalme  / Terms October 1, 2011 – September 30,   

                               2015 1



    

 

COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA                             SEPTEMBER 19, 2011                                   PAGE  2 

 

 

  E.  Planning Commission – Barnette       

   F.  Recreation Board – Reese       

          Need two (2) members       

    G.  Utility Board - Scott     
           Review minutes / July 27

th
  

 

6.  REPORTS OF OFFICERS: 

     A.  Mayor’s Report  

B. City Attorney’s Report  

C. Department Head Comments    

David Cohen – Alabama Tourism Grant Application 

 

7. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION:    

 

 

8. RESOLUTIONS & ORDINANCES: 

 

      RESOLUTIONS: 

 

a.)  Bid Award / Intersection Improvements /  

       U.S.  98 & C.R. 64. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Resolution 2011-65 

 

b.)  Declare City Property Surplus. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2011-66 

 

c.)   MS-4 Permit Reclassification Request. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Resolution 2011-67 

 

d.)   State of Alabama Tourism Grant Application. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Resolution 2011-68 

 

 

 

  ORDINANCES: 

 

      2
nd

 READ 

a.)  Annexation of AL State Hwy 181 Right-of-Way . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2011-64 

 

 

      1
ST 

READ 
b.)  Daphne Real Property Transfer. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2011-65 

 

c.)   Lodging Tax Appropriation: Bay Front Richard Scardamalia  

       Pavilion Building / Stair Replacement . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2011-66 

 

d.)   Extending Fiscal Year 2011 Budget Authority. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2011-67 

 

 

9. COUNCIL COMMENTS                   

10.  ADJOURN 

 
2



CITY OF DAPHNE 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

 

ROLL CALL 

 

 

CITY COUNCIL:                                         CALL  VOTES   

                                  

COUNCILMAN YELDING     PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

COUNCILWOMAN BARNETTE    PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

COUNCILMAN LAKE   PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

COUNCILMAN REESE   PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

COUNCILMAN SCOTT   PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

COUNCIMAN BOULWARE     PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

COUNCILMAN PALUMBO   PRESENT       ABSENT         

    

MAYOR 

 

MAYOR SMALL    PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

CITY CLERK: 

 

DAVID L. COHEN                 PRESENT___    ABSENT___ 

 

CITY ATTORNEY: 
 

CITY ATTORNEY JAY ROSS  PRESENT       ABSENT    

 

 

MINUTE NOTES: 

 

 

                                                             

 

                                                             

 

                                                             

 

                                                             

 

3



                                                             

 

                                                             

 

                                                             

 

 

      CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

MINUTES 

 

NOTES: 

 

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                   

 

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS 

 

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                                                             

4



SEPTEMBER 6, 2011 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                   

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

1.   CALL TO ORDER 

Council President Barnette called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 

 

2.    ROLL CALL/INVOCATION/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Invocation was given Councilman John Lake. 

 

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT: Bailey Yelding; Cathy Barnette; John Lake; Kelly Reese; Ron 

Scott; Derek Boulware; August Palumbo. 

 

Also present: Mayor Small David Cohen, City Clerk; Rebecca Hayes, Assistant City Clerk; Jay Ross, City 

Attorney; James White, Fire Chief; David Carpenter, Police Chief; Adrienne Jones, Planning Director; 

Vickie Hinman, Human Resources Director; Kim Briley, Finance Director; Tonja Young, Library 

Director; Richard Johnson, Publics Works Director; Margaret Thigpen, Civic Center Director; David 

McKelroy, Recreation Director; Captain Scott Taylor, Police Department;  Employees of the City; Jane 

Ellis, Mayors Assistant; Ashley Campbell, Environmental Programs Manager; Christine Ciancetta, 

Deputy Finance Director. 

 

Absent: Richard Merchant, Building Official. 

 

 

 

3.  APPROVE MINUTES 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Boulware to adopt the August 15, 2011 Council meeting minutes.   

Seconded by Councilman Scott.  

 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR              NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

PUBLIC HEARING:  Annexation of Right-of-Way of AL State Highway 181 

                                       Location:                 The right-of-way of AL State Highway 181 from Lawson  

                                                                        Road South to the Southernmost corporate limit of the 

                   City of Daphne 

                                      Recommendation:    Unanimous favorable  

 

Mrs. Adrienne Jones gave the presentation.  Mr. Richard Johnson, Public Works Director, said that 

this started with ALDOT requesting that the city do the maintenance along this stretch of Highway 

181, and at the Public Works meeting it was discussed whether it was appropriate to maintain 

something that was not a part of the city.  He said if council approves the annexation then ALDOT 

will send a Cooperative Maintenance Agreement to be approved by council. 

 

Council President Barnette opened the Public Hearing at 6:39 p.m. 

 

No one spoke for or against the annexation. 
5



SEPTEMBER 6, 2011 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

2 

 

Council President Barnette closed the Public Hearing at 6:39 p.m. 

 

 

4. REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEES: 
   A.  FINANCE COMMITTEE – Boulware 

No report.  The next meeting will be September 12, 2011. 

 

B. BUILDINGS AND PROPERTY COMMITTEE – Lake 

The committee met before the council meeting, and the minutes will be in the next packet. 

 

C. PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE – Boulware 
The minutes for the August 10

th
 meeting are in the packet. 

 

D. CODE ENFORCEMENT/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE –  Boulware 

No report. 

 

E. PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE/SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY – Yelding 

No report.  The next meeting will be September 19
th

 at 5:00 p.m.  They still need members for the 

Environmental Advisory Committee. 

 

5.   REPORTS OF SPECIAL BOARDS & COMMISSIONS: 

A. Board of Zoning Adjustments – Mrs. Jones 

The minutes for the August 4
th

 meeting are in the packet.  The next meeting will be the 1
st
 Thursday in 

October with one set back variation. 

 

B. Downtown Redevelopment Authority – Barnette 

The minutes for the August 22
nd

 meeting are in the packet.  The Authority needs one (1) member.  The 

members will be hosting a Focus Group meeting either at city hall or at Vino e Bira. 

 

C. Industrial Development Board – Yelding 

The minutes for the August 2
nd

 meeting are in the packet. Councilman Yelding stated that the board 

still needs one (1) member, and asked that they contact him or David Cohen with the nomination.  

 

D. Library Board – Lake 

No report.  The next meeting will be first Thursday of October at 4:00 p.m. 

 

E. Planning Commission – Jones 

The July 28
th

 minutes are in the packet.  The Site Review meeting is September 14
th

 and the regular 

Planning Commission meeting will be on September 22
nd

.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

6



SEPTEMBER 6, 2011 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

3 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to set a Public Hearing for October 17, 2011 ad to approve 

advertising for the following: 

 

1.)  Amendment to the Land Use & Development Ordinance / Revision to the Zoning Map 

       Recommendation:  Unanimous favorable 

 

2.)  Rezone:                         Heatherstone Multi-Asset Entity 

       Location:                      On the East side of AL Hwy 181, South of Austin Road, North of  

                                              Dick Higbee Road / Lot 1, Dunmore Subdivision, Phase Two, Part C 

       Present Zoning:            R-1, Low Density Single Family Residential and R-2, Medium Density 

                                               Single Family Residential  

       Requested Zoning:        R-3, High Density Single Family Residential  

       Recommendation:         Unanimous favorable 

 

3.)  Rezone:                          Heatherstone Multi-Asset Entity 

       Location:                       On the East side of AL Hwy 181, South of Austin Road, North of                                         

                                               Dick Higbee Road / Lot 2, Dunmore Subdivision, Phase Two, Part C 

       Present Zoning:            R-1, low Density Single Family Residential 

       Requested Zoning:        R-2, Medium Density Single Family Residential 

       Recommendation:         Unanimous favorable 

 

4.)  Rezone:                           Heatherstone Multi-Asset Enity 

       Location:                        On the East side of AL Hwy 181, South of Austin Road, North of 

                                                Dick Higbee Road / Lot 3, Dunmore Subdivision, Phase Two, Part C 

       Present Zoning:             R-1, Low Density Multi-Family Residential  

       Requested Zoning:        R-4, High Density Single Family Residential  

       Recommendation:         Unanimous favorable 

 

Seconded by Councilman  Lake. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

Mrs. Jones said that there is also a resolution revising the street map. 

 

Councilman Lake requested that the proposed amendment to the sign ordinance for the Academy 

Village Overlay be on Monday‟s work session agenda. 

 

F. Recreation Board - Reese 

The board needs two (2) members.  Mr. McKelroy has someone interested in being on the board, and 

is getting the resume, and he may have another person interested. 

 

 

 

 
7



SEPTEMBER 6, 2011 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

4 

 

G. Utility Board – Scott 

The board met, and they had the Public Hearing for the rate increase before the regular business 

meeting, and it was widely attended.  The rate increase was unanimously approved.  The next meeting 

will be the last Wednesday of the month. 

 

 

6.  REPORTS OF THE OFFICERS: 

    A.  Mayor’s Report 

           a.)  Special Events Permit / Christ the King Church / Prayer Event / October 15, 2011           „ 

           b.)  ABC License / Harry‟s Sound Bar / 010 – Lounge Retail Liquor – Class I 

           c.)  Parade Permit / Bounds Family YMCA / 5K & 1 Mile Fun Run  / October 1, 2011 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to approve the Special Events Permit for Christ the King / 

Prayer Event / October 15, 2011, ABC License / Harry’s Sound Bar / 010 – Lounge Retail 

Liquor – Class I and Parade Permit / Bounds Family YMCA / 5K & 1 Mile Fun Run / October 

1, 2011.   Seconded by  Councilman Scott. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

 B.  City Attorney Report 

Mr. Ross said that at the next council meeting there are a couple of pending litigations that he needs to 

discuss with council in Executive Session. 

 

C. Department Head Comments 

David Carpenter – Police Chief – reported that there was a school lock-down situation at Christ the 

King, Bayside Academy and W.J. Carroll schools, because of a robbery in the area.  A neighbor saw 

the robbery in progress and called it in to the police department, and the suspect was apprehended. 

 

Richard Johnson – Public Works Director – said that Daphne weathered the storms over the weekend 

quite well.  There was no flooding, but there were a couple of trees down, and with Riviera‟s help they 

were able to clear the trees away.   

 

James White – Fire Chief – reported that they received an invitation from Mobile to join them for the 

10
th

 Anniversary of 9/11 at the Battleship Sunday.  He also reported that last week there were three (3) 

house fires at the same time where they had to call for assistance from other fire departments. 

 

David McKelroy – Recreation Director – reported that Brown Bag by the Bay is Thursday 11:30 a.m. 

– 1:30 p.m. This Thursday they have Andrew Duhon from New Orleans who is a singer songwriter 

that will be performing. Next week Rebecca Barry a jazz singer from Fairhope will be performing.  

Friday Daphne will be playing football at Foley, and will be televised on Channel 44.  Saturday the 

Baldwin County Youth Football Jamboree with 53 teams will be playing at Trione and starts at 3:30 

p.m.  On Saturday and Sunday 22 teams of the USFAgirls fast-pitch softball will be playing at Trione.  

The Coastal Alabama Soccer Association will be playing Sunday on five (5) fields with 28 teams from 

2 – 6 p.m. Also the city‟s 52 teams of the Youth Soccer will start Monday. 
8



SEPTEMBER 6, 2011 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

5 

 

Margaret Thigpen – Civic Center Director – reported that Emeril Lagasse will coming October 20th, 

which is sponsored by Page & Palette of Fairhope, and citizens can find the events on the Civic Center 

website on the city web page. 

 

Jane Ellis – Mayors Assistant – reminded everyone that the Jubilee Festival is in a couple of weeks, 

October 23
rd

 will be the Out of Darkness – Suicide Prevention Awareness Walk, and the first Saturday 

in December is the Jingle Bell Run. 

 

Kim Briley – Finance Director – introduced the new Deputy Finance Director Christine Ciancetta. 

 

David Cohen – City Clerk – reminded council that the NRDA ordinance needs to be amended from 

$7,500 to $10,500 if council choses to adopt the ordinance. 

 
 

7. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
 

NO ONE SPOKE 
 

 

8.   RESOLUTIONS, ORDINANCES, ORDERS AND OTHER BUSINESS 

 

      RESOLUTIONS: 

a.)  Revisions to the City of Daphne Street Map. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2011-62 

 

b.)  Re-appoint Two Directors to the Board of Directors of 

       Renaissance Improvement District. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Resolution 2011-63 

 

c.)      Re-electing One Director to the Board of Directors of 

          Renaissance Cooperative District. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2011-64 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to waive the reading of Resolutions 2011-62, 2011-63 and 

2011-64.  Seconded by Councilman Lake. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt Resolution 2011-62.  Seconded by Councilman Lake. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

 

 
9



SEPTEMBER 6, 2011 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

6 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt Resolution 2011-64.  Seconded by Councilman Reese. 

 

AYE    Yelding, Reese, Scott, Boulware, Palumbo, Barnette                           ABSTAIN    Lake           

 

                                     NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 
 

 

 
ORDINANCES: 

        2
ND

  READ 

 a.)   Pay Adjustment:  $.50/hour . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2011-58 

 

b.)  Amending Pay Table for $.50 Pay Adjustment. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2011-60 

 

c.)   Pavement Striping & Marking of Roads. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2011-61 

 

d.)  Pay for Appraisals for NRDA Grant with Lodging Tax. . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2011-63 

 

      1
ST 

READ 

e.)   Annexation of AL State Highway 181 Right-of-Way. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2011-64 

 
 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to waive the reading of Ordinance 2011-58 and 2011-60.  

Seconded by Councilman Lake. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Boulware to table Ordinance 2011-58.  Seconded by Councilman Palumbo. 

 

Council discussed the motion. 

 

Councilman Boulware called for the question. 

 

ROLL CALL VOTE 

 

Yelding Nay    Boulware  Aye       

Lake Nay    Palumbo  Aye 

Reese Aye    Barnette  Nay 

Scott Nay 

 

                      AYE    Reese, Boulware, Palumbo         NAY    Yelding, Lake, Scott, Barnette 

 

                                                              MOTION FAILED                                                                

 

10



SEPTEMBER 6, 2011 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

7 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to adopt Ordinance 2011-58.  Seconded by Councilman Scott. 

 

AYE    Yelding, Lake, Scott, Palumbo, Barnette                       NAY    Reese, Boulware  

 

                                                              MOTION CARRIED                                                    
 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to adopt Ordinance 2011-60. Seconded by Councilman Yelding. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to waive the reading of Ordinances 2011-61 and 211-63.  

Seconded by Councilman Yelding. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Yelding to adopt Ordinance 2011-61.  Seconded by Councilman Lake.  

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to amend Ordinance 2011-63 from $7,500 to $10,500.  Seconded by 

Councilman Yelding. 

 

                AYE    Yelding, Lake             NAY    Reese, Scott, Boulware, Palumbo, Barnette 

 

                                                                MOTION FAILED 
 

NO MOTION TO ADOPT ORDINANCE 2011-63. 

 
 

 

ORDINANCE 2011-64 WAS MADE 1
ST

 READ. 
 

 

8. COUNCIL COMMENTS 

Mayor Small -  (Verbatim)  Council President and council, citizens of Daphne, especially his constituents I 

am here tonight to give you my notice that as of the middle of October I will be resigning as Mayor of the 

city.  It comes to a point in time where my time is really needed elsewhere, and I need to move my time that 

way.  So I feel like that gives us six (6) weeks to perform whatever needs to be performed to however you 

are going to do it.  If you are going to move a council person up into my seat, and then re-elect one to go  

 
11



SEPTEMBER 6, 2011 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

8 

 

over there then that should do it.  If that can be done quicker then I would be more than anxious to leave at 

the end of this month, but I do not want to leave anybody in a bind. I do have some things in the irons that is 

going to need some of my time, and I am just short on time right now. My family is mainly suffering, and I 

want to get that straightened out.  This is to give notice that if any way possible I would like to leave at the 

end of this month, but I will be glad to stay through the middle of next month which will be around the 15
th

 

or so of October  and that would be my last day as Mayor of the City of Daphne. 

 

Councilman Lake said that he almost had a wreck at the Main Street and Windsor Drive entrance to Lake 

Forest this evening, because cars come into the turn lane to turn down the side road behind the little 

shopping center there, and it is not for them to turn onto, it is for the cars turning on Windsor, but these cars 

are coming over into that lane, and I have seen several near misses, because people just pull over.  He asked 

if there was something that could be done to either reconfigure that intersection or block that area off and 

tell people to go on down the road to the stop light.  He thinks it is a wreck waiting to happen. He is still 

surprised by the Mayor‟s statement. 

 

Councilman Reese said that not too many meetings ago they had a vote about a one-time payment to the 

city employees that he voted in favor of, and he thinks he needs to explain why he voted in favor of that and 

against the pay adjustment that was passed tonight.  The reason why he voted for the one-time payment was 

that a one-time payment did not commit the city to expend revenues outside the normal budget process in 

perpetuity in an economy that is very uncertain right now. One time payments out of what appears to be, 

right now, a surplus are a sound way to reward employees for loyalty and service, and he thinks it was 

justified.  That is something that you can do and can consider doing when times are as uncertain as these, 

and you have some cash on hand.  He does not think the decision to make the make the permanent 

adjustment outside of the normal budget process was a wise one.  He wanted to offer an explanation for 

what might have seemed to some to be an inconsistent position. 

 

Councilman Scott said that he is shocked about the Mayor‟s decision, but they all have families and they all 

have personal lives. He thanked the Mayor for the seven (7) plus years that he served, and thanked him for 

adding to the financial coffers.  They had some good years and bad years, but every year that he was Mayor 

they added to the reserves.  He wanted to thank him for his service. He thinks what he heard from the 

council is that they want to go for the NRDA grants they just don‟t want to submit them with paid for 

appraisals at this point that are paid or by the city.  They want the City Clerk to go forward with the grants 

just that they are not willing to gamble $10,000 on the process.   

 

Councilman Boulware stated that he appreciates the Mayor‟s service to the city. At times they have 

disagreed, but he agrees with his service and his respect for the city, and he knows that the citizens 

appreciate what he has done for them, and they certainly do.  He asked the Mayor to accept his heartfelt 

appreciation for him and what he has committed to the City of Daphne. 

 

Councilman Palumbo added his thanks to the Mayor for the time that he has put in.  He has quoted Harry 

Truman a couple of times who said “If you are in politics and want a friend get a dog.”   You have to be an 

elected official to know what he is talking about.  It is no easy thing.  To stay in any position for a number 

of years takes a thick skin, and you have to put up with a whole lot, and as Mr. Boulware said they have not 

always agreed on things, but never was there any loss of respect or lack of appreciation for the job that was 

done not only by the Mayor, but his colleagues as well.  He would suggest to the Council President that this  

12



SEPTEMBER 6, 2011 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

9 

 

be on the work session for next week, because not only the appointment of a Mayor, but the ramifications, 

for example replacement on the Utility Board and on the Planning Commission and so forth. That should be 

foremost on their agenda.  He voted to table the pay thing for at least a meeting so they could at least see the 

budget.  He has no idea what is in it.  They took a leap of faith.  They are all familiar with the Federal 

legislation, and the comment that was made by the Speaker of the House at the time said “that they need to 

vote for this so we can tell what is in it”, and that is exactly what they did tonight.  They voted for it so they 

could tell what is in it.  It is not the right way to go, and he pleads guilty, because he voted for it, but he 

certainly hopes that there are no surprises in the projection, because that is another $315,000 next year, and 

year after year that they will have to cut out of someplace else.   

 

Council President Barnette thanked the Police Department for their communication.  She guesses that they 

really do need to get those radios, because citizens can get that police scanner and text live while they are on 

manhunts.  She actually heard about it from a friend that downloads the Police Department app, and she 

heard that the police were on x, y, z street, and they see a criminal on this street, and she would agree that 

they need communications that the public can‟t hear.  Hopefully, they can get that accomplished soon.  He 

also thanked the Fire Department for the job they did with the three fires that they had that Sunday.  It was a 

lot of work, and she thinks it does highlight, again, the coverage that the south part of the city, Districts 1 & 

2, continue to need.  She has beat this drum for the last six (6) years, and she will continue to beat it, but 

they need service with a fully manned station that serves District 1 and District 2.  They have populations 

that deserve this coverage just as much as the rest of the city.  It is not a disparaging remark against the Fire 

Department, and the work they do. She has talked with Chief about it, and they just need to provide the 

same coverage for their residents.  Obviously, there are a lot of pressures within the forthcoming budget, but 

we keep seeing fires, houses keep burning, and they are requiring mutual aide.  The house on Hillwood, for 

example, Daphne did not get to it first, and we are thankful that they had folks that could serve the 

community, but they also need to provide that coverage for someone that lives in that part of town.  She 

asked that they keep it in mind, and imagine the coverage that is required.  They do need to continue to 

enforce the sign ordinance.  They have a lot of folks that are getting their cars painted in their graphics and 

parking them up on the right-of-way or in the median to advertise their businesses.  It is a creative way to 

advertise in their parking lot, but it does not need to be on the right-of-way or on the median.  She said that 

the Mayor threw everyone a curve ball.  They most certainly have not agreed on everything, but he gave a 

lot of his time, and your family does suffer.  She thinks that all of them know, not just his family specific, 

but families do suffer, and they pay a price for the constant call that the Mayor receives, the time, the phone 

calls, the e-mails, the dedication that he has to give to the city, and she personally appreciates that, and she 

thanked him for his service.  Se knows that the citizens will miss that. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

13



SEPTEMBER 6, 2011 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

10 

 

 

 

 

9. ADJOURN 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Yelding to adjourn.  Seconded by Councilman Scott. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

 

There being no further business to discuss the meeting adjourned at 7:39 p.m. 

 

 

Respectfully submitted by,                                 

                             
 

________________________________                                                                         

David L. Cohen,        

City Clerk, MMC                   

                                                           Certification by Presiding Officer:       

 

 

       ________________________________                                                                              

       Cathy S. Barnette, 

       Council President 

14



SEPTEMBER 12, 2011 

CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

1 

 

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT:  Cathy Barnette; John Lake; Kelly Reese; Ron Scott; Derek 

Boulware; August Palumbo.   

 

ABSENT:  Bailey Yelding. 

 

Also present: David Cohen, City Clerk; Rebecca Hayes, Assistant City Clerk; Jay Ross, City 

Attorney; Richard Johnson; Public Works Director; Adrienne Jones, Planning Director; Ashley 

Campbell, Environmental Programs Manager. 

 

Absent: Mayor Fred Small. 

 

Council President Barnette called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 

 

1. MS-4 APPLICATION 

Ashley Campbell made the presentation discussing applying for a Phase II permit since Daphne does 

not have a population of 100,000 or the infrastructure that Mobile has.  She feels that Daphne fits 

Phase II better than Phase I.  She discussed the requirements for Phase I & Phase II, and the benefits 

of being under Phase II.  The Phase I permit has been expired for six (6) years.  She mentioned that 

you have to file a letter of intent, and she has been working on it for two (2) years.  This will save 

the city a lot of money in the long run.  She will need a resolution authorizing the application. 

 

Consensus of council is to move forward with the application. 

 

2. MAYOR’S RESIGNATION: 
Mr. Ross stated that the Mayor tendered his resignation to the City Clerk this afternoon.  The 

resignation is effective at midnight October 17, 2011.  So between now and the next council meeting 

or when the council decides by state law the council may accept his resignation by motion or by 

resolution.  Once the resignation is accepted by action of the council, then that resignation cannot be 

changed or modified by the Mayor.  There are two statutes that arguable govern what to do in the 

face of a vacancy of the Mayor in a Class 7 or Class 8 municipality.  Daphne is a Class 8 

municipality based on a 1970 census, which is based on population. Even though the population has 

changed significantly in 40 years they have not changed the classification in the state’s legislature so 

the city remains a Class 8 municipality.  Based on the law, and after considerable discussion with the 

League of Municipalities, he and the League are of the opinion that §11-44-G-2 of the Alabama 

Code controls.  As the council is aware from his memo the law has not changed and the bottom line 

is the council my appoint somebody from their own or they may appoint somebody from outside of 

the council to serve the remaining term of the Mayor, obviously, the term of Mayor will officially 

end in November 2012 with elections commencing in August 2012.  The council may accept the 

resignation first, and after that select the new position of Mayor to be effective at 12:01 a.m. on 

October 18, 2011.  There is no requirement that they vote after October 17
th

 he thinks they can vote 

before that time whether it be at the next council meeting or any council meeting generally called or 

specially called for that purpose.  An interesting issue arose in his review of this, and that was 

whether a council member, whoever it may be, wants to nominate themselves for the position of 

Mayor, and there is really no law on the subject, per say, so he spoke with Hugh Evans, the General 

Counsel for the Alabama Ethics Commission, and they had a long conversation about it, and it was  

15



SEPTEMBER 12, 2011 

CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

2 

 

clearly Mr. Evans position, and he is allowed to quote him, he said “that it would be legally 

impermissible in his judgment for a councilmember to nominate themselves for the position of 

Mayor or to second it, it would be considered a conflict”. So at least officially if a councilmember 

wanted to be Mayor he could not nominate himself nor could he second it, and so hence, if there is 

debate amongst the councilmembers it can’t be “I did not nominate myself”, “I did not second it”, “I 

can’t advocate myself for that position”.  If there’re more than one person nominated then, 

obviously, they count for the quorum to establish the meeting but cannot vote for that position. There 

is no question about it from Hugh Evans prospective without any doubt or hesitation.  So that is the 

short version of where they are, and it is up to the council to decide when to accept the Mayor’s 

resignation, obviously, it cannot be done tonight, but it could be done at the next council meeting 

Monday night with seven (7) days notice for a typical meeting, and/or thereafter they can vote that 

night or whenever the council pleases to vote for who the new Mayor will be.  It can wait until after 

the 17
th

, but he would not recommend it. He said that there is another statute that David sent to 

council that deals with this provision that provision is §11-43-42 which also talks about it, and there 

are no Attorney General Opinion’s on point, thought the League is getting ready to come out with a 

memo dealing with a quorum as drafted by Tracy Roberts, and it is the clear position of the League 

that a Class 7 or Class 8 municipality that council gets to fill the position by vote of the council 

within 60 days of the effective date of the Mayor’s resignation, and if council cannot do it, it goes to 

the Governor, and if the Governor fails to make an appointment from the names submitted, one from 

each councilmember, then it goes to the Probate Judge to call a special election to fill the vacancy.  

The general consensus from the League is §11-44-G-2 controls.  He is definitely correct on this. 

 

Councilman Scott wanted to make sure he heard right a councilmember cannot nominate nor second 

himself. 

 

Mr. Ross stated that is correct.  He said you won’t find that in the statute, but that is the opinion of 

the Ethics Commission. 

 

Councilman Scott asked what about council voting for themselves. 

 

Mr. Ross said NO. 

 

Councilman Scott said even though it says in towns under 12,000 it says that a councilmember may 

vote for himself or herself in an election to fill a vacancy.   

 

Mr. Ross said that he discussed that statute with Mr. Evans, and he thought that was not correct, that 

it would not support that, because they are not going with §11-43-42, they are going with§11-44-G-

2. 

 

Councilman Scott said that he understands that it is different, but to him if this position is one on 

ethics and not on the election law then what would you do if you had a town under 12,000.  There 

would be a conflict between his opinion and the State Code. 

 

Mr. Ross said that would require a formal request to the Ethics Commission in order to make that 

determination. 

16



SEPTEMBER 12, 2011 

CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

3 

 

Councilman Scott said that will make it hard to get four (4) votes. 

 

Mr. Ross stated that it certainly narrows it down and makes it more difficult. 

 

Council President Barnette asked is the quorum three (3) or four (4)? 

 

Mr. Ross said that the quorum would be four (4) with seven (7) members.  If there are more than two 

(2) then those people go to create the quorum, but not for the majority.  The abstention goes to the 

quorum, but you still have to have four (4) votes.  Mr. Ross said he saw that and discussed it with 

Mr. Evans.  He does not have anything in writing, but Mr. Evans was very emphatic about it. 

 

Councilman Palumbo said he thinks in addition to what was stated, obviously, the fact that the salary 

of the Mayor is considerably more than the council, and that would bring into question someone 

voting for a personal benefit.   

 

Mr. Ross said that they all know that is exactly what it boils down to. 

 

Councilman Palumbo said even though that is not in the statute he could see that questions would be 

raised.  He wanted to throw that in because of the timing of the situation, because November 1
st
 they 

also, not by term, per say, but agreement by the council have to select a new Council President and 

Pro tem, and in particular if a councilmember goes the Mayor’s office, they would have to replace 

that council seat also.  He asked if Mr. Ross’s opinion holds also for the election of the Council 

President. 

 

Councilman Scott said in the past the councilmember always abstained. 

 

Mr. Ross said that he discussed that with Mr. Evans as well, and Mr. Evans opinion to him was 

clearly that Council Pro tem be best not to vote.  He said that he is not saying that it always happens, 

although he heard Councilman Scott’s comments, but caution would dictate, now that he has asked 

the question he would not like to object to it if he had a different opinion.  For example, if Mrs. 

Barnette gets the job then the Council President’s position comes up for grabs, and the council can 

pick from within the balance and select a new person to take her spot, respectfully, or it can wait 

until you have a full council, and then vote for somebody. 

 

Councilman Palumbo said that his point was that the Council President position is up on November 

1
st
 anyway so they have three (3) meetings prior to that. 

 

Mr. Ross said that if it becomes vacant they have a right to fill it upon its vacancy, and he thinks 

they can do it for the balance of the term of their office. 

 

 

 

Mr. Cohen said that the position of Council President can change at any time, and it is not limited by 

the one year clause. 

 

17



SEPTEMBER 12, 2011 

CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

4 

 

Mr. Ross said that you could change anybody anytime, but assuming that they did not change it, for 

example, if Mrs. Barnette were to get the job that position of Council President would be vacant, and 

they could appoint someone from the six (6) to take the position, and then you would go through the 

same process as the council did to select Mr. Reese as a new council person or whatever the process 

is that council would care to do.  The way that they did with Mr. Reese seems to have satisfied the 

council, but it is not required to do it that way.  As long as council picks somebody in the same 

manner as they picked the position of Mayor once that position becomes vacant. 

 

Council President Barnette asked because they are accepting the resignation by date, and the council 

will be taking some kind of action, assuming they can make a decision, the statute that has the 

Council President taking over, is it right that they don’t have to worry about that statute? 

 

Mr. Ross said correct. 

 

Council President Barnette said so because it is date specific, they can accept the Mayor’s 

resignation at any point, and not necessarily appoint the new Mayor.  She said say they accept the 

resignation Monday night they do not need to define a successor other than have the 60 day time 

frame that starts to clock. 

 

Mr. Ross said that is correct.  He said they would want a successor by October 17
th

.  

 

Councilman Palumbo asked did he not say that once the resignation has been formally accepted the 

resignation cannot be rescinded. 

 

Mr. Ross said that is correct, and there are plenty of AG opinions to support that. 

 

Mr. Cohen said there is one issue that he wanted to bring up, and that is if they did not pick a 

successor within the 60 days, you would need to have an acting Mayor. 

 

Mr. Ross said that there was an argument that the Council President would fall to that position in 

that circumstance. 

 

Council President Barnette stated that she is sure this council would not let that happen. 

 

Mr. Ross said that he hopes that they would not do that. 

 

Councilman Palumbo stated that including October 17
th

 and prior to the effective time of the 

resignation they have three scheduled council meetings plus another work session. 

 
Mr. Ross said plus they can call another council meeting with seven (7) days notice if they so desire. 

 

 

Councilman Scott stated that on page 26 from the Mayors and Council Handbook section19 (c) it has a 

section on the salary for the temporary Mayor. 

 

18



SEPTEMBER 12, 2011 

CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

5 

 

Mr. Ross said that there is a more recent Attorney General’s Opinion on that as late as April of 2011 which 

seems to also suggest that the position of Mayor in this case doesn’t take on the salary of the Mayor, however, 

the opinion from the League is that it applies to a temporary vacancy of the Mayor, and once the council 

makes the appointment by vote that becomes a permanent temporary position.   

 

Councilman Scott said that in the case that they had not selected someone, and the Council President became 

the temporary Mayor by default then he or she would not receive the Mayors salary.  

 

Mr. Ross said that he agrees completely.  He said that some of these issues are not perfectly clear as they 

reflect back on 20 to 30 years of state statute.  The League is coming out with a publication that deals with 

this issue.  He has an advance copy of publication that deals with under Class 7 or Class 8 cities §11-44-G-2 

controls, because it is considered more specific that §11-43-42. Their official opinion is that council gets to 

select. 

 

Councilman Scott mentioned that this may be the time to consider a city administrator. 

 

Council discussed the pros and cons of a city administrator, and if they consider this option they want to have 

public hearings on the subject. 

 

Councilman Boulware wanted to get something cleared up before they get in there to vote next week.   If the 

meeting starts and they have a motion to accept the nomination of so and so, and that motion is seconded, and 

there is second motion to consider another candidate, do they vote on the first motion prior to accepting the 

second nomination or do they bring both nominations on the table and vote the second one first…..he asked 

for the Roberts Rules on this before they get into it next week he would appreciate it. 

 

Council President Barnette said since it is date specific would it not be the cleanest to accept the Mayors 

resignation first. 

 

Mr. Ross said yes accept the resignation first and then move into nominations. 

 

Councilman Boulware said his question is how to you address the candidates for the position, and if they have 

multiple candidates for the position, at which point he thinks it is understood that they do have multiple 

people on the council interested in the position, so do you accept nominations one at a time and vote them up 

or down or do you take all the candidates at one time with firsts and seconds, and take them in order,  that is 

his question. 

 
Councilman Scott said he thinks it would be like when they elected the Council President they made a 

nomination and there was a second, and the chair said is there anymore nominations, and there was one that 

lacked a second or something, and then they voted.  When all have been nominated and seconded you go in 

order, and whoever gets four votes is elected. 

 

Councilman Boulware said if they don’t get four votes for that one candidate it goes around until all have 

been voted on, and if they cannot come to an agreement his understanding is that Governor Bentley gets a 

phone call. 

 

 

Council President Barnette said that they still have until October 17
th
.   

 

Councilman Palumbo said in fact it would not go the governor until 60 days after the resignation is effective. 

19



SEPTEMBER 12, 2011 

CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

6 

 

Mr. Ross said that would be December 17
th
.  

 

Consensus of council was to have the Mayor’s resignation on the agenda for Monday night. 

 

 

Mr. Ross asked council members to call a Special Called council meeting for next Wednesday, September 21, 

2011 for an employee hearing.  The employee was terminated on Friday, September 9, 2011, and according to 

the Employee Handbook council has to set a hearing date within 15 days after the request for a hearing.   

 

Councilman Palumbo stated that they need to change the ordinance from 15 days to 30 days. 

 

Mr. Ross said he was going to ask council if he could rewrite the Rules and Procedure Ordinance to bring it 

more up to date.   

 

Councilman Scott and Councilman Palumbo requested a Special Called Council meeting for Wednesday, 

September 21, 2011 at 6:30p.m. for the purpose of an employee hearing. 

 

 

5. ADJOURN 

 

There being no further business to discuss the meeting adjourned at 7:22 p.m. 

 

 

Respectfully submitted by,       

                                                     

                               

___________________________                                                                                        

David L. Cohen,                                                                     

City Clerk, MMC                                                                                                                                            
       Certification of Presiding Officer:   

 

 

       ________________________________      

      Cathy S. Barnette,     

      Council President        

20



 

 

City of Daphne, Alabama 

  

 

CERTIFICATE OF 
 

CONGRATULATIONS TO 

 

MR. RICH WRIGHT 

 
 

WHEREAS, Mr. Rich Wright is a resident of the City of Daphne; and 
 

 

WHEREAS, Mr. Wright was inducted into the Senior Citizens Hall of Fame 

on August 21, 2011; and 

 

WHEREAS, he exemplifies the very best attributes of volunteerism and 

charity work; 

 

WHEREAS, Mr. Wright has volunteered his time to the construction and 

repairs of the Home of Grace, Mobile Theatre Guild and Joe Jefferson 

Theatre and to helping other senior citizens who can no longer attend to 

their own home repairs. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, the Mayor and the City Council of the City of Daphne 

congratulate Mr. Rich Wright for the honor bestowed upon him by the 

Alabama Department of Senior Services, and we hope that his fine example 

will shine for all to follow in his footsteps and continue to make Daphne a 

great place to live. 

 

 
_____________________________ 

Fred Small, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST:     

      ____________________________ 
                                                             David L. Cohen, City Clerk, MMC 

21



FRED SMALL 
MAYOR 

KIMBERLY M. BRBLEY 
FINANCE BIRECTORiPREASURER 

DAVID CARPENTER il 
CHIEF OF POLICE 

JAMES "BOO" WHITE 
FIRE CHIEF 

TO: 

FROM: 

COUNCIL MEMBERS 
BAILEY YELDBMG, JR 

DlSIRtCT 1 
CATHY BARNETTF 

DISTRICT 2 
JOHN &. LAKE 

r%rsTiarca 3 
KELLY B. REESE 

DiSTRlCT 4 
RON SCOTT 

DISTRICT 5 
DEREK BOULWARE 

DISTRICT 6 
AUGUST A. PALUMBB 

DISTRIC'I 7 

DATE: September 

RE: Resignation 

By way of this memo I am notifying the City Clerk's Office of my resignation as 

Mayor of the City of Daphne effective midnight on October 17, 2011. 

1 905 MAlN STREET PeOe BOX 400 DAPHNE, ALABAMA 36526 * (25 1 ) 62 1-9000 * FAX: (25  I ) 62 1-8624 

22



 

ROSS, JORDAN & GRAY, P.C. 
Attorneys at Law 

1111 Dauphin Street 

Mobile, AL  36604 

Telephone:  (251) 432-5400 

Facsimile:   (251) 432-5445 
e-mail address of writer:  jay@rossandjordan.com 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

MEMORANDUM 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

 
DATE:  SEPTEMBER 7, 2011 

 

TO:   MAYOR FRED SMALL 

   COUNCIL MEMBERS 

   CITY CLERK 

 

FROM:  JAY M. ROSS 

 

CC:   ERICK BUSSEY 

 

RE:   PROCEDURE TO REPLACE MAYOR AFTER RESIGNATION 

  
 _________________________________________________________ 

 

 After last night's events and in response to questions from most of you last night 

and today, the following is the current state of Alabama law regarding the procedures to 

replace a mayor of a Class 8 municipality.  I have also conferred with the Alabama 

League of Municipalities and while this memo does not cover every contingency, it does  

provide the general procedures and applicable law for the circumstances we presently 

have.    

 

 The following are portions taken from an article produced by the Alabama League 

of Municipalities and of which speaks directly to the issues currently faced by the City of 

Daphne. 
. . . 

 

 “The resignation of an official becomes effective immediately unless otherwise stated in 

the resignation. When a public official transmits a resignation without an effective date and 

without a condition, the resignation, the resignation is effective at the point he or she transmits 

the resignation, and the resignation does not need to be accepted. See AGO 2003-065. If 

however the resignation is conditioned on becoming effective on a date in the future, the 

prospective resignation of the public official may be withdrawn at any time prior to its 

acceptance or the effective date. See Ex Parte Rhea, 426 So. 2d 838 (Ala. 1982). Where there  

Procedure to Replace Mayor After Resignation 

23



September 7, 2011 

Page Two 

____________________________________________ 

 

 

was no acceptance of a resignation prior to its effective date, or prior to the withdrawal thereof, 

the resignation may be validly withdrawn. See McPherson v. Mims, 385 So. 2d 44 (Ala. 1980). A 

resignation would not be allowed to be withdrawn after it has been accepted. See AGO to Hon. 

Roger Sharp, March 14, 1983. The vacancy occurs on the date the resignation becomes effective.  

 

                   .          .          . 
 

 When a vacancy of the mayor or a council seat occurs, the position should be filled as 

soon as possible to prevent the crippling effect of not having a quorum to do business. In most 

municipalities, vacancies in the office of mayor are filled pursuant to Section 11-43-42, Code of 

Alabama 1975, except in Class 7 and Class 8 municipalities where a vacancy in the office of 

mayor is filled using the provisions of Section 11-44G-2, Code of Alabama 1975. Generally, 

a vacancy in a council position is filled according to Section 11-43-4, Code of Alabama 1975. 

However, vacancies on the council in Class 7 and Class 8 municipalities are filled pursuant to 

Section 11-44G-1, Code of Alabama 1975. Time restrictions are imposed on the council’s ability 

to fill vacancies in the office of mayor or councilmember in Class 7 or Class 8 municipalities; 

therefore it is important to be aware of exactly when a vacancy has occurred. If the council does 

not fill the vacancy within 60 days after it occurs in a Class 7 or Class 8 municipality, the 

council, by default, loses its right to thereafter fill the vacancy. See AGO 1999-168. In the event 

a vacancy in the office of councilmember is not filled within 60 days after it occurs in a Class 7 

or Class 8 municipality, each existing council member, including the mayor, may submit a name 

to the governor for appointment. If the Governor fails to make an appointment from any 

submitted names within 90 days after the vacancy occurs, the judge of probate must call a special 

election to fill the vacancy.” 

 

. . . 

 

 It should be noted that the City Council has not accepted the Mayor’s resignation until it 

has performed an official act for the same, such as adopting a motion or resolution to accept the 

resignation. Best practice mandates that the mayor’s resignation should be in writing and then 

submitted to the council. Further, the procedures as mentioned in Sections 11-44G-1 and 11-

44G-2 for the replacement of a councilmember or mayor are as follows: 

 

Councilmember 

 

“(a)(1) A vacancy in the office of city council member in any Class 7 or Class 8 municipality shall 

be filled by the city council at the next regular meeting or any subsequent meeting of the council. 

The person elected shall hold office for the unexpired term. In the event a vacancy is not filled 

within 60 days after it occurs in a Class 7 or Class 8 municipality, each existing city council 

member, including the mayor, may submit a name to the Governor for appointment. If the  

 

Procedure to Replace Mayor After Resignation 

September 7, 2011 

24



Page Three 

____________________________________________ 

 

Governor fails to make an appointment from any submitted names within 90 days after the 

vacancy occurs, the judge of probate shall call a special election to fill the vacancy.  

 

(2) In the event the Governor is unable or unwilling to make the appointment within the time 

period provided, he or she shall immediately notify the judge of probate of the county.  

 

(3) Any election called pursuant to this section shall be conducted pursuant to Chapter 46 of this 

title.  

 

(4)  In the event more than one vacancy exists in the office of city council member or in the office 

of mayor, or both, all vacancies shall be filled in the same manner. 

 

(b) In any election held pursuant to this section, only qualified electors who are residents of the 

municipality shall be eligible to vote and shall present proof of identification to the poll workers 

before casting a vote. The identification may be in the form of a valid Alabama driver's license or 

some other form of identification that confirms a permanent address in the city where the vote is to 

be cast. Other forms of identification may include, but are not limited to, a credit card, birth 

certificate, food stamp card, Social Security card, check cashing card, library card, passport, 

school record, work identification record, school identification, certified copy of a marriage 

license, any form of governmentally-issued identification, or Medicaid, Medicare, or welfare 

identification.” 

Ala. Code § 11-44G-1 (1975). 

Mayor 

“(a)(1) In the event of the absence or disability of the mayor in any Class 7 or Class 8 

municipality, the functions of the office shall be exercised by the chair pro tempore of the city 

council and, during his or her absence or disability, by such person as the city council may appoint 

from its membership, which appointment shall be entered upon the minutes of the city council.  

 

 (2) In the event of a vacancy from any cause in the office of mayor, the city council shall fill the 

vacancy either from its own membership or from without the membership of the city council. The 

person elected by the city council to fill the vacancy in the office of mayor shall be a qualified 

elector in the municipality and shall meet all other legal qualifications required by law for the 

performance of the duties of the Office to which elected.  

 

 (3)a. In the event a vacancy in the office of mayor is not filled within 60 days after it occurs in a 

 Class 7 or Class 8 municipality, each existing city council member may submit a name to the 

 Governor for appointment. If the Governor fails to make an appointment from any submitted 

 names within 90 days after the vacancy occurs, the judge of probate shall call a special election to 

 fill the vacancy. 

 

b. In the event the Governor is unable or unwilling to make the appointment within the time period 

provided, he or she shall immediately notify the judge of probate of the county.  

Procedure to Replace Mayor After Resignation 

September 7, 2011 

Page Four 

____________________________________________ 

25



 

c. Any election called pursuant to this section shall be conducted pursuant to Chapter 46 of this 

title.  

 

d. In the event more than one vacancy exists in the office of city council member or in the office 

of mayor, or both, all vacancies shall be filled in the same manner. 

 

(4) In any election held pursuant to this subsection, only qualified electors who are residents of the 

municipality shall be eligible to vote and shall present proof of identification to the poll workers 

before casting a vote. The identification may be in the form of a valid Alabama driver's license or 

some other form of identification that confirms a permanent address in the city where the vote is to 

be cast. Other forms of identification may include, but are not limited to, a credit card, birth 

certificate, food stamp card, Social Security card, check cashing card, library card, passport, 

school record, work identification record, school identification, certified copy of a marriage 

license, any form of governmentally-issued identification, or Medicaid, Medicare, or welfare 

identification.  

 

(b) This section shall not apply to cities operating under commission form of government.” 

Ala. Code § 11-44G-2 (1975).  

 

 

 The bottom line is that the Council has the right to select from within the council or any 

qualified electorate of the City to be Mayor without a general election if done within sixty (60) 

days of the effective date of the Mayor's resignation.  I plan to ask the Mayor to place his 

resignation in writing and to select a date certain with the effective date to hopefully be on the 

date of a regularly scheduled council meeting.  I will also encourage the council to formally act 

to accept the resignation by motion or resolution.   

 

 If anyone has any questions please feel free to contact me. 

 

  

 

26



CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
STANDING COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 
FINANCE COMMITTEE REPORT 

 
                                                                    
                                                                   

                                                                  
 
                                                                  
 
                                                                  
 

BUILDINGS & PROPERTY COMMITTEE REPORT  
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    

PLANNING/ZONING/CODE ENFORCEMENT COMMITTEE REPORT 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
 

PUBLIC SAFETY/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE REPORT 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    

                                                                  
 
                                                                  
 

PUBLIC WORKS/BEAUTIFICATION/MUSEUM COMMITTEE  REPORT 
 
                                                                  
 
                                                                  

27



CITY OF DAPHNE 
FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES 

September 12, 2011 
4:00 P.M. 

 
I.      CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 
 
The meeting was called to order at 3:55 pm.  Present were Chairman Derek Boulware, Councilman Ron Scott, 
Councilman Bailey Yelding, Finance Director Kim Briley, Deputy Finance Director Christine Ciancetta, Senior 
Accountant Suzânne Henson, and Accountant Donna Page. 
 
Also in attendance were Mayor Fred Small, Human Resources Director Vickie Hinman, Public Works Director 
Richard Johnson, Revenue Officer Heather Gwynn, Civic Center Director Margaret Thigpen, Recreation Director 
David McKelroy, Police Captain Scott Taylor, and Building Maintenance Supervisor Frank Barnett. 
 
 

II.      PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  
 
There was no public participation. 
 
III.    HUMAN RESOURCES BUSINESS 
 
 
Update on Human Resources Department Activity  
 
Ms. Vickie Hinman presented the Human Resources activity update. The Deputy Finance Director position was 
filled on 9/1/11, and the Police Officer position was filled on 9/22/11.  References are being checked for the 
Firefighter and Corrections Officer positions. 
  
The Safety Committee discussed sending a quarterly Safety Awareness Newsletter to all departments.  Sandy 
Cushway, Randy Jones, and Dan Castrillo attended the Alabama Governor’s Safety Conference.  Two 
shelter/pavilions at the dog park have been completed.  
 
Ms. Hinman reported on the following HR department projects:  
 Benefits Fair – August 3, 2011 
 Firefighter Oral Board Interviews – August 10, 2011 
 Admin Lunch and Learn – Stress and Weight Management – August 11, 2011 

 Benefits Open Enrollment – September 1 – 30 
 

  
IV. CURRENT BUSINESS 
 
A.  Financial Reports 

 
1.  Treasurer’s Report:  August 31, 2011 
 
The Treasurer’s Report totaling $17,906,528.30 was presented.  
 
Motion by Mr. Yelding to accept the Treasurer’s Report as of August 31, 2011, in the 
amount of $17,906,528.30.  Seconded by Mr. Scott.  Motion carried. 
 
2.  Statement of Revenues and Expenditures: July 31, 2011 
 
Ms. Briley presented a statement of Revenues and Expenditures at July 31, 2011, showing total expenditures 
over revenues of ($2,761,679). 
 28



Finance Minutes - 2011-09-12.doc  2  

3.  Sales and Use Taxes: July 31, 2011 
 
Sales and Use Tax Collected for July 2011    -      $901,773 
Sales and Use Tax Budgeted for July 2011   -       $829,125             
Over Budget (for July)                                    -       $  72,648 
 
YTD Budget Collections Variance – Over Budget - $827,693  
 
4.  Lodging Tax Collections, July 2011  
 
The Lodging Tax Collections report shows $76,621.86 collected for July, 2011.  Mr. Scott asked for a 
breakdown of the Lodging Tax fund balances.   
 
5.   Report: New Business Licenses – August 2011 
 
The list of new businesses, and businesses closed, in August was presented.  Ms. Briley noted that there are 
several new contractors due to the summer businesses of lawn work, etc.  
 
6.  FY 2012 General Fund Budget Summary  
 
Ms. Briley presented the General Fund Budget Summary for FY 2012 showing estimated revenues of 
$21,663,877, appropriations of $18,068,980 and transfers of $3,876,863, showing estimated revenues under 
appropriations and other financing uses of ($281,966). 
 
Mayor Small stated he is meeting with Ms. Briley tomorrow (Tuesday, September 13) to discuss the budget.  He 
noted the department heads did a good job preparing their budgets, and it should be ready for the Finance 
Committee’s review soon.  Mr. Scott discussed calling a special work session of the Council to discuss the 
budget.   
 
7.  Bills Paid Reports – August 2011 
 
The August Bills Paid Report was included in Packet #2.  
 
B.  Appropriation Request  
 
1.  Lodging Tax- 
  

 Bay Front Stairs Repair - $2,500 
 

A request from the Buildings & Property Committee to replace the stairs at Bay Front was presented. It 
was noted that there is no longer any support for them and they need to be torn down and new stairs 
put in.  A quote of $2,500 to replace the stairs has been received and it was discussed that this could be 
paid from Lodging Tax. 

 
Motion by Mr. Scott to recommend Council adopt an ordinance appropriating $2,500 
from Lodging Tax  to replace the stairs at Bay Font Park. Seconded by Mr. Yelding.   
Motion carried. 
 
2.  General Fund - 
 

 Tennis Courts Resurfacing - $9,700 
 

 Randall Avenue Sidewalk - $60,386 
 

The resurfacing of the Lott Park tennis courts and sidewalks for Randall Avenue were discussed.  Mr. 
Yelding noted these two items are needed and recommended the projects be submitted for approval in 
the FY2011 Budget. Discussion continued that if approved the Ordinance appropriating the funds would 
most likely require two reads and would therefore be approved in October.  Discussion continued on 

29



Finance Minutes - 2011-09-12.doc  3  

whether these projects should be part of the FY2012 capital request.  Mr. Richard Johnson noted that 
Public Works would like to be able to do the work during the good weather days of October and 
November, and before the holidays.  

 
Motion by Mr. Scott to recommend Council consider the resurfacing of the Lott Park 
tennis courts for $9,700, and sidewalks for Randall Avenue for $60,386 as FY2012 
capital expenditures appropriation. Seconded by Mr. Boulware.   Motion carried. 
 
 

 Daphne Utilities Real Property Transfer: Johnson Road Lift Station/Art Center – Survey & Plat Work - 
$4,538.81 

 
The land swap between the City and Daphne Utilities of the Lift Station on Johnson Road and the Water 
Tower/ Art Center was discussed.  The City and Daphne Utilities agreed to split the cost for the survey 
and plat work.  HMR has billed the City $9,077.61, and Daphne Utilities has been invoiced for their 
portion of $4,538.81. 

 
Motion by Mr. Scott to recommend Council adopt an ordinance appropriating $4,538.81 
for one-half of the services rendered by HMR for the survey and plat work for the land 
swap with Daphne Utilities of the Johnson Road Lift Station and the Art Center. 
Seconded by Mr. Yelding.   Motion carried. 

 
C. Bids 
 

 2011-Z-INTERSECTION IMPROVEMENTS AT  U.S. 98 & C.R. 64 
 
Six bid invitations were received.  Volkert Inc and staff recommend the bid be awarded to the low 
bidder, Asphalt Services, Inc for $799,998.73. Mr. Davis with Volkert Inc. noted that Asphalt Services 
bid is 6% lower than the next lowest bid and is under the engineer’s estimate.  It was discussed that this 
is a cooperative project between the City and ALDOT, with the construction costs split evenly and the 
State paying 100% of the cost of signal improvements.  $669,700 has previously been appropriated, 
with a balance remaining of $554,952.  The City has paid $60,000 for signals. 

 
Motion by Mr. Scott to recommend Council adopt a resolution awarding bid 2011- Z-
INTERSECTION IMPROVEMENTS AT U.S. 98 & C.R. 64 to Asphalt Services, Inc. for 
$799,998.73. Seconded by Mr. Yelding.  Motion carried. 

 
D.  Discuss RSA Overtime Restriction 
 
Ms. Briley presented Retirement Systems of Alabama’s notice that retirement contributions should no longer be 
submitted on overtime pay.  Retirement contributions will be made on regular pay only from here forward.  This 
is based on Attorney General’s opinion 2011-090.  It was noted that no changes or adjustments will be made to 
prior contributions.  
 
E.  Request to Waive Sales Tax Penalties 
 

 Health Horizons, Inc - $312 Penalties for 6 Months Past Due Sales Tax 
 

 Guido’s - $914.53 Penalties for 3 Months Past Due Sales Tax 
    

Requests from Health Horizons, Inc. and Guido’s to waive sales tax penalties for late payments were 
presented.   

 

30



Finance Minutes - 2011-09-12.doc  4  

Motion by Mr. Yelding to recommend Council deny the request from Health Horizons, 
Inc. to waive penalties of $312 and the request from Guido’s to waive penalties of 
$914.53. Seconded by Mr. Scott.  Motion carried. 

 
 
F.  Amend Pay Table – Public Safety (Correction) 
 
Ms. Briley discussed the ordinance granting annual raises of $1,040 and that it had been brought to her 
attention that shift workers at the police department would be getting less than $.50 per hour because they work 
84 hours straight time.  It was recommended that the ordinance be amended to read $.50 per hour increase. 
 
Motion by Mr. Scott to recommend Council amend Ordinance #2011-60 to read “award 
pay increase of $.50 per hour”. Seconded by Mr. Yelding.  Motion carried. 

 
G.  Declare City Property Surplus: 
 
The following equipment was presented for surplus: 
 
Dept  Tag/Veh# Description         Vin# / Serial #                     
Recycling 790  2000 Mack RD688S Garbage Truck  1M2P296C8YM053009  
 
Motion by Mr. Scott to recommend Council adopt a resolution declaring the listed 
property surplus and authorizing the Mayor to dispose of such equipment. Seconded 
by Mr. Yelding.  Motion carried. 

  
H.  Update on City Internet/Connectivity 
 
Ms. Henson noted that the Police Department is still waiting for some final information before they can complete 
their evaluations.  Ms. Henson noted meeting the Police Departments connectivity needs is a large component 
in this evaluation.  Ms. Henson noted the City technology advisor will be available to answer any questions that 
Council may have since this information is highly technical and expertise in this field will be required.  Mr. Scott 
asked that a recommendation be presented next month. 
 
V. ADJOURN   
 
The meeting was adjourned at 4:45p.m. 

31



Fred SmaU 
Mayor 

Viclkr;e Hinman 
IIuman Resources 1)uector 

Shefree HiIbm 
Payroll and Benefits Coordinator 

Michele I-lanson 
Human Resources Assistant 

September 9,201 1 

HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT ACTIVITY UPDATE 

Job Openings Apps Received Status 

Police Officer 
Firefighter 
Corrections Officer 
Deputy Finance Director 

DOH: 912211 I 
References 
References 
DOH: 91111 1 

Safe@ Committee Meeting on August 36, 2061: Discussed a quarterly Safety Awareness 
Newsletter to be sent to the departments. Sandi Cushway, Randy Jones and Dan Castrillo 
attended the Alabama Governor's Safety Conference. The gazebo has been completed at the dog 
park. 
Next meeting wiEl be Wednesday, Aagast31) 2012 at 8:15 a.m 

Human Resources Department Projects: 

e August 3,20 1 1 - Benefits Fair 
e Augsut 10,201 1 - Firefighter Oral Board Interviews 
e August 1 1,201 1 - Admin. Lunch and Learn - Stress and Weight Management 
e August 19,201 1 - Firefighter Oral Board Interviews 

September 1-30 - Open Enrollment until October 1,201 1 

Human Resources Department 
P.O. Box 400 Daphne, Alabama 36526 

Phone: (251) 621-3075 Fax: (251) 621-4506 32



TREASURERS REPORT 
As of August 34,284 3 

TO: FINANCE COMMITTEE 

FROM: KIMBERLY BRlbEY, FINANCE DIRECTOmREASUREIrp 

AGCT TITLE BANK BALANCE -~ 

GENEML FUND & ENTERPRISE FUNDS 

MMA ACCT COMPASS 
OPERATING ACCT COMPASS 
PAYROLL ACCT COMPASS 

INVESTMENT FUND RAYMOND JAMES $5,068,023.31 
(investment $4,828,875.15) 

AGENCY FUNDS 

MUNICIPAL COURT COMPASS $334,252.47 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 

SAIL SITE 
4 CENT GAS TAX 
7 CENT GAS TAX 

RBC BANK 
RBC BANK 
RBC BANK 

CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS 

CAPITAL RESERVE WACHOVIA 
2006 CONSTRUCTION WACHOVIA 

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS 

DEBT SERVICE WACHOVIA 
2006 DEBT SERVICE RBC BANK 

33



GENERAL FUND 
Summary Statement of Revenues and Expenditures 

For the Month Ended July 31,201 1 
with comparatives: 7-31 -2006; 7-31 -2007; 7-31 -2008; 7-31-2009; and 7-31-201 0 

Budgetary 
Amended Variance 

7/31/2006 7/31/2007 7/31/2008 7/31/2009 7/31/2010 71311201f Budget Over/(Under) %Budaet - - - - - 
Revenues 
Sales, Use, & Luxury Taxes 9,283,705 9,391,053 8,976,520 8,061,271 7,970,002 8,629,693 10,463,000 (1,833,307) -18% 
Payment in Lieu of Taxes 234,984 303,572 299,760 305,391 300,810 378,825 2,000,000 (1,621,175) -81% 
Ad Valorem Taxes 3,145,722 3,654,383 3,983,638 4,733,370 4,708,953 4,242,452 4,864,000 (621,548) -1 3% 
Licenses & Permits 1,921,186 2,287,093 2,262,695 1,807,849 1,676,635 1 1,749,186 1,581,725 165,461 10% 

Expenditures 
General Government 

Personnel 1,259,025 1,391,952 1,480,821 
Operating 775,118 866,190 806,680 

Capital 151,855 32,266 10,445 

2,185,998 2,290,408 2,297,946 
Public Safety 

Personnel 3,759,229 4,469,940 5,385,909 
Operating 938,445 1,025,952 1,045,845 

Capital 275,481 236,113 177,130 

4,973,155 5,732,005 6,608,884 
Public Works 

Personnel 1,629,489 1,834,998 1,670,089 
Operating 1,070,764 1,031,144 1,064,770 

Capital 699,380 372,558 1 1,939 

3,399,633 3,238,699 2,746,798 
Parks & Recreation 

Personnel 790,465 850,508 989,742 
Operating 502,831 487,515 517,770 

Capital 13,500 256,357 200,000 

1,306,796 1,594,379 1,707,511 

Other Revenues 1,594,130 1,331,405 1,136,082 1,153,409 1,331,809 
Total Revenues 16,179,726 16,967,506 16,658,694 16,061,290 15,988,209 

1,312,094 
16,310,250 

Other Financinq Sources & Uses 
Debt Proceeds - 506,969 
Transfers to Debt Service (2,207,383) (2,418,270) (2,429,874) (2,363,958) (2,719,423) 
Other Transfers & Uses (721,465) (804,920) (389,133) (670,180) (475,578) 

Total Other Financing SourceslUses (2,928,848) (3,223,190) (2,819,006) (3,034,138) (2,688,031) 

Unreserved Fund Balance, 10-01 5,968,130 8,298,621 10,050,583 10,510,392 FY 11 Scheduled Fund Balance Draw: 
Release of Encumberances 36,015 - 136,324 Paving 2,113,890 
Unreserved Fund Balance, 7-31 7,353,427 9,223,460 10,529,131 9,353,188 

1,573,014 (260,920) -17% 
20,481,739 (4,171,489) -20% 

Total Revenues Over 
Expenditures - _  J ,385,997 888,824 478,548 - (1,293,528) (1,101,868) -- 

(2,620,088) 
(2,304,652) 
(4,924,739) 

(2,772,575) - . 10,896 - 

(2,808,244) (188,156) 7% 
(2,503,303) (198,651) 8% 
(5,311,547) (386,808) 7% 

34



SALES & USE TAXES 

October 
November 
December 
January 
February 
March 
April 
May 
June 
July 
August 
September 

Totals 

ACTUAL COLLECTIONS 

201 1 
800.512.03 October 
819.834.09 November 

1,121,383.45 December 
817.230.14 January 
840,768.01 February 
976.181.39 March 
916.536.59 April 
889.945.33 May 
946,355.76 June 
901,772.80 July 

- August 
- September 

9,030,519.59 Totals 

FY 2011 BUDGETIACTUAL COMPARISONS 

Actual- 201 1 
800,512.03 
819.834.09 

1,121,383.45 
817.230.14 
840,768.01 
976.181.39 
91 6,536.59 
889.945.33 
946,355.76 
901,772.80 

m t  Monthlv Variance 
755,468 45,044.03 
752.814 67,020.09 
991,992 129,391.45 
714.825 102.405.14 
724,538 116,230.01 
905,661 70,520.39 
799,876 116,660.59 
851,910 38,035.33 
876,618 69,737.76 
829,125 72,647.80 
781,228 
830.946 

YTD Var~ance 
45,044 03 

112.064 12 
241.455 57 
343.860 71 
460,090 72 
530.61 1 11 
647,271 70 
685,307 03 
755,044 79 
827,692 59 
827,692 59 
827,692 59 

% of Budqet 
5 96% 
8 90% 

13 04% 
14 33% 
16 04% 
7 79% 

14 58% 
4 46% 
7 96% 
8 76% 
0 00% 
0 00% 

October 
November 
December 
January 
February 
March 
April 
May 
June 
July 
August 
September 

$ Chanqe 
2005-2006 

98.933.95 

FISCAL YEAR COMPARISONS 

2010-201 1 
35.870.90 October 
57.878.72 November 

117,346.25 December 
93.725.86 January 

107,432.41 February 
59,523.84 March 

106,947.86 April 
27,690.79 May 
59,093.08 June 
62,580.47 July 

- August 
- September 

Percent Chanqe 
2006-2007 

1.28% 

Annual $ Change 1,418,335.85 994,535.81 168,436.75 (591,883.26) (1,239,802.98) (105,368.34) 728,090.18 Annual %Change 15.27% 9.29% 1.44% -4.99% -1 0.99% -1.05% 7.33% 

35



36



Monthly Lodging Tax Collections 

FY 97 - F y S -  FY 98 Fy99 
October 7,228.60 6,701.69 8,042.55 13,241.96 13,344.97 
November 9,371.57 5,419.99 7,156.30 9,963.87 13,712.88 
December 
January 
February 
March 
April 

May 
June 
July 
August 
Septembe~ 

Total 

Ordinance 1997-28 adopted December 8,1997 increased levy from 3% to 4% 

October November December January February March Apr~l May June July August September 

+FY95+FY96 F Y 9 7 - r - F Y 9 8 - + F Y 9 9 - + - F Y O O ~ F Y 0 1 + F Y 0 2 + F Y 0 3 ~ ~ * F Y 0 4  FY05-FY06 
~ F Y 0 7 + F Y 0 9 + F Y 1 0  F Y I 1  

Z:\ExcehFIN-STATIFY 201 l\SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS FY 201 l\Lodglng Tax 201 1 XIS 

37



ESTIMATED REVENUES 
Sales & Use Taxes 
Ad Valorem Taxes 
Business Licenses 
PILOT Taxes 
Luxury Taxes 
Permits 
Court Collections 
Intergovernmental 
Fees & Charges 
Recreation 
Grants 
Interest 

BUDGET 

10,944,435 
4,581,000 
1,490,000 
2,250,000 

659,000 
341,975 
450,000 
192,617 
197,750 
127,600 
160,000 
240.000 

GENERAL FUND 

FISCAL 201 2 BUDGET SUMMARY 
BUDGET FYI 1- 

ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL 
YTD 311 1 - FY 10 

4,399,728 9,934,167 10,040,568 
3,906,416 5,603,130 5,539,305 
1,339,742 1,400,404 1,484,968 

199,298 1,952,460 2,046,309 
270,058 679,324 656,166 
210,851 338,664 428,533 
247,434 401,835 438,638 
83,787 220,397 270,176 

126,109 286,604 204,940 
47,730 137,068 137,039 

156,502 41 9,052 327,265 
(30,733) 57,386 78,083 

ACTUAL 

11,279,350 
4,322,745 
1,592,999 
1,861,149 

626,526 
755,758 
371,702 
195,574 
219,903 
130,955 
314,111 
305,893 

ACTUAL 

11,871,233 
3,703,278 
1,464,404 
1,716,258 

594,364 
970,444 
382,238 
296,586 
236,099 
123,731 
24,396 

41 3,042 

ACTUAL 

11,702,796 
3,496,126 
1,398,473 
1,475,563 

585,556 
616,656 
365,182 
369,426 
301,212 
1 15,602 
89,689 

238,840 

ACTUAL 

10,708,261 
3,015,895 
1,228,901 
1,239,320 

569,22 9 
578,423 
383,414 
206,400 
216,154 
123,639 
84,529 
67,359 

APPROPRIATIONS 
General Government 
Public Safety 
Public Works 

Estimated Revenues Over 
Appropriations Before Other 
Financing Sources & Uses 3,594,897 3,011,524 3,588,795 3,923,199 4,275,356 5,181,491 5,119,868 5,001,712 4,522,799 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES & USES 
Gen Long Term Debt Proceeds 
Trans from Other Funds 

Other Financing Sources 
Allow for Comp AbsenceslPay Plan 
Transfers to Debt Service Fund (2,875,483) (2,808,244 
Transfers to Capital Reserve (500,000) (2,113,890 
Transfers to 99 Construction Fund 
Transfers to Enterprise Funds (469,031) (351,810 

, 

Excess (Deficit) Est Rev Over (Under) 
Approp & Other Financing Uses (281,966) (1,204,069) 387,568 546,105 961,756 1,136,699 2,471,066 1,994,129 SOB,46& . 

38



NEW BUSINESSES 

CITY LIMITS CONTRBCTORS 
RETAILERS CLIMATE CONTROL OF PENSACOLA 1 

JAMES PATRICK BREWER 

RAND CONSTRUCTION 
ALL OTHER MECHANICAL SYSTEMS, INC 

MARCO'S PIZZA 
JUBILEE MEDICAL EQUIPMENT 
A LA 'CARTE CLEANING 
VASCULAR DIAGNOSTIC SERVICE 
REAL ESTATE MATRIX 

EASTERN SHORE MUSIC REPAIR 
MMT INC 
CROWN CASTLE GT 

1 JAHNKE & SONS CONSTRUCTION 
1 COMTEL NETWORK 
1 ROOF DOCTORS 
1 POLANDS DRYWALL INC 
1 STAR DRYWALL 

I C N A CONSTRUCTION 
1 MORRISON CONTRACTING CO, LLC 
1 BAY VISTA LANDSCAPE INC 

JOHN PLATT 
SELECT FLOORING LLC 
MIKE BERNS 
GENES FLOOR COVERING II, INC 
MCMICHAELS CONSTRUCTION CO 

OUTSIDE CITY LIMITS KCUFA CONSULTING, INC 1 

WALGREENS.COM 
CONSOLIDATED GRAPHICS 
RUBEN GRlGORlAN 
ECO-SYSTEMS 
ENVIRO-MANAGEMENT PARTNERS 
RICHELIEU AMERICA LTD 
SUNSHINE SERVICES 
R K STEEL 
SIGN LlTE 
EDUCATIONAL PRODUCTS, INC 
PELLA WINDOWS AND DOORS 
CORE-MARK 
CARGOTECH USA INC 
ALL 4 U LLC 
WILDLIFE SOLUTIONS 

BLOCKBUSTER ONLINE 

1 SALVA PAINTING 
1 MOODY ROOFING 
1 CHASON REFRIGERATION 
1 PHILIP DELLENGER SHEET METAL 
1 AXIS SECURITY 
I GRANITE COMMUNICATIONS 
1 LARRY KNOTT 
1 DON HENDERSON 
1 FOUNTAINS BACKHOE 
1 ROBERT KELLEY 
I S&G CLEANING & POWERWASHING 
9 

I TOTAL CONTRACTORS 29 

I TOTAL NEW BUSINESSES IN DAPHNE 53 

CLOSED BUSINESSES IN DAPHNE 

TOTAL OUTSIDE CITY LIMITS 16 TOTAL CLOSED BUSINESSES IN DAPHNE 

39



Buildings b% Property Committee Meeting 
Monday, September 7,2011 5:30 PM 

Daphne City Hall 

Committee 
Councilman John Lake 

Councilman Derek Boulware 
Mayor Fred Small 

Richard Merchant, Building Official 
Frank Barnett, Maintenance Supervisor 
Margaret Thigpen, Civic Center Director 

Committee Minutes (Summary) 

Present: Mayor Fred Small, Councilman Derek Boulware, Councilman John Lake, Richard 
Johnson, Public Works Director; Frank Barnett, Maintenance Supervisor; Margaret Thigpen, 
Civic Center Director; Ashley Campbell - Building Department; Jane Ellis, Mayor's Assistant 

A.) Minutes from August Meeting: Motion made to  approve minutes from August Meeting. 
Approved. 

B.f Building Maintenance - Frank Barnett reported back t o  the committee that it would be 
cost prohibitive t o  have the police monitor the Nicholson Center building for fire as 
opposed to  Hunter Security. He is  waiting on a quote from Hunter security t o  submit a 
quote for the Boys & Girls Club. 

C.) Civic Center Report - Margaret reported that the stairs at Bayfront have to  be replaced. 

X 
Frank said he had looked at them and there is no longer any support left and they need 
to  be torn down and new stairs put in. He has a quote for $2500 and recommends to 
move forward as it is a safety issue as well. Motion made to take this request of $2500 
be allocated to replace the stairs at the Bayfront facility to the next Finance 
Committee. 

August numbers are attached. Margaret reported on the Taste of the Easter Shore 
event and i ts  results. Expenses have not been deducted from this amount and it was 
noted by the Mayor that the City also contributes about $8000 t o  this event t o  cover 
civic center costs. 

40



Buildings 4% Pr0peB"6&y Committee Meeting 
Monday, August 2,2811 5:38 B M  

Daphne City Wall 

CommSPtee 
Councilman John take 

Councilman Derek Boutware 
Mayor Fred Small 

Richard Merchant, Building OWicial 
Frank Barnett, Maintenance Supervisor 
Margaret Thigpen, Civic Cetater Director 

Committee Minutes  summa^) 

Present: Mayor Fred Srnail, Councilman Derek Soulware, Councilman John Lake, Richard 
Johnson, Pubtic Works Director; Frank Barnett, Maintenance Supervisor; Margaret Thigpen, 
Civic Center Director; Ashley Campbell - Building Depair"iment; Jane Ellis, Mayor's Assistant 

A.) Minutes from June Meeting: Motion made to approve minutes from.June Meeting. 
Approved. Note: There was no meeting held in July. 

8.) Building M~intenance - Frank Barnett ginve a quote (per request of Committee 
members) for the resudacing, leveling, etc. of Lott Park tennis coues. This would also 
include replacing the net and post. While this would not bring it quite to regulation size 
it will refurbish the surface for use. Motion made to send to t h e  Rec Board with 
favorable recommendation in hopes of the Rec Board taking it to the Finance 
Committee, Quote is for $9700, Would like to have a decision no later than 2 months 
from now. 

Our insurance inspector made the recommendation that we place a 24 hour monitored 
fire alarm system at: the Nicholson Center and the Boys I4. Girts Cfub buildings. They 
have an alarm system for a break in currently but not for a fire. Frank said that the fire 
afarm a t  the museum purchased and installed recently was about $3565 plus a monthly 
fee and an inspection fee. 

John Lake suggested we look into the City a&uat!y handling the monitoring instead of 
Hunter Security. Pine question was also asked if there was a penarty for placing the 
systems in the buildings based on their suggested recsmmendations. 

Joha Lake asked Margaret Thigpen to take a look at the Nichotson Cerarer far potential 
rental facility. 

41



CiDj of Daphne Recrea~on Board 
2665 Hwy 98 

Daphne, AL. 36526 
Juiy 17, 201'1 

Members Present: Rick Cieveiand, Mati Cunningham, Doug Dugat and Kit 
Smith 

Members Absent: Jan Mittemeyer and John Peterson 

Advisory Staff: David McKeiroy, Parks & Recreation Director and Charlie 
NlcDavid, Athletic Programs Coordinator 

Call to Order 
Meeting was called to order at 6:37pm. 

Review and Approvai of Minutes 
Motion was made Rick Cleveland and seconded by Doug Dugat to approve the 
May 11, 201 1 minutes. Motion passed, 

Public Participation 
None 

Program Reports 
Information was provided regarding Senior Programs, Special Programs and Fall 
Athletic Programs. It was noted that participation numbers in fall athletic 
programs were equal to 2010 numbers. 

Old I New Business 

I. Matt Cunningham wil! assume the duties of Chairman due to the 
resignation of Eric Smith. Election of officers l ~ i l l  take place in 
September. 

2. Proposed By-Laws were discussed. After changes, the By-laws were 
approved and will be forwarded to the Council for their approval. 

3. New members and Board membership was discussed. Current 
members recommended that further members be involved with 
Recreation programs and that current recreation staff recommend 
potential candidates. 

4. Current and Proposed Athletic Field Rental rates were presented to 
the board. After discussion, the Board recommended the proposed 
rates be accepted. 

5. The Building and Property Committee forwarded a recommendation to 
repair the tennis courts at Lott Park. Motion was made and passed to 
forward the recommendation to the Finance Committee for their 
consideration. The Recreation Board also wanted to thank the 
Buildings and Property Committee for also recognizing this need. The 
Recreation Board further recommends the fencing be repaired. Cost 
estimates will be forwarded for the Finance Committee's consideration 

6. The Board was given information about a Land and Water 
Conservation Fund Grant that we will apply for in an effort to construct 
new tennis court. 

7. Information was presented to the Board about the Coastal Alabama 
Leadership Council's efforts to obtain information to create a database 
to determine the best usage for the Gulf Restoration Fund in the 
specific areas of Sports and Leisure. 

Comments from Director 
The director informed the Board that the Athletic Coordinator is working an 
average of 54 hours a week and the director is averaging 58 hours a week. The 
Board passed a recommendation that the Recreaiion Departmerlt be provided 
the personnel to perform the duties of the department within reasonable working 
hours. 

42



GMERICeN f ENN10 COURTS, INC,  
. --" --  T-_!t-,sii!s 53,4+i~;1 2s.. + ,',:?,s~~E. iL 5351.5 . z ~ - - - ~ = ~ - .  c- ... ,, ... J t6r-/ I.,'. '.ile~-.c , s  

. ? ? ,  47 j./i.!l a 23:!'1 25L.132; t Z,:.,; 2% 3i75.-7 7 2 

June 29,201 1 

Frank Barnett 
2000 Main Street 
Daphne, Alabama 

Dear Frank. 

As requested, we are pleased to offer the following quotation for the work to be performed on the two (2) tennis 
courts located at The City of Daphne. 

Standard Resurfacing 

For the price of 8,508.00, we will: 

1. Thoroughly clean and pressure wash the courts 
2. Fill and level all cracks 
3. Fill and level all low areas holding greater than 1/8" of water 
4. Install the American Surface System, (color: Dark GreedRed) 
5. Install white texhred playing lines 

Listed below are some accessories you may wish to add to your court: 

Remove and replace one net post foundation, net post, and reel $985.00 (needed) 
(1) Net and (2) Center Straps $1 97.00 (needed) 
Court Valet $ 65.00 ea. 
Rol-Dri $ 75.00 ea. 
Courtsider Bench $250.00 ea. 
Score Post Scorekeeper $1 10.00 ea. 69 7 0 0 , ~ ~  

Adequate access and water must be made available to the site. All labor and materials will have a one (1) year 
warranty. This quotation does not include the construction of or the repair of any landscaping, sidewalks, 
irrigation work, electrical work, etc. &though an work wig be pedomedl to naaanafae~ser's spec2ca~oas,  
ns warran@ can be oftered oa the sehsart of any cracks or  tbe aEects of the expansion joint on our 
worhansbip  or mate~als .  It is mderstood that the cracb can rehrn  at any h e  after the work bas 
been completed. Two applications of Round-up must be made to kiU the vegetation on the courts and all debris 
must be removed from the court prior to work commencing. 

Thank you for the opportunity to offer this quotation. This quotation is valid for 90 days. If you need any 
additional infomation, please call me at the number above. If you wish to schedule and have this work 

performed, sign below and either fax or e-mail a copy of this letter to our office. I look forward to hearing &om 
you and working with you. 

Jeffky M. Nichols 
P r ~ s i d ~ n f  

Signature of Acceptance 

43



Meeting Date: August 15, 201 1 

Notice of Action Taken 

Action Taken Forwarded Person to Notes 

/ 1I.B. I Public Participation - Steve I No action requested or I 1 
Commander, Randy Davis & 
Jay Dickson (Volkert) RE: 
Street Evaluation 
Presentation 

Mosquito Reports - July 201 1 

Randall Avenue Sidewalk - 
Request for Capital Budget 
appropriation 

taken - presentation for 
information purposes only 

Requested that Park Drive 
and associated side streets 
in the Park City Community 
be included in August's 
routes 
Motion Passed (Note: No 
action taken on any 
consideration of the 
resk~dacing of Randal 
A venue) 

Grounds Grounds Supervisor 
Department 

Finance Finance Staff 
Department 

Covered in PW Departmental Staff 
Meeting on August 16, 201 1 

Finance Committee Agenda: an 
Appropriation of $60,385.42 for the 
installation of a sidewalk on the 
north side of Randall Avenue from 
U.S. Highway 98 to Deerwood at 

/ Pollard Road (+ 4,000 linear feet). 
1V.A. I Hazard Mitigation Grant I PWlCity Engineer will I Public Works1 I Public Works I Applications due by August 31, 

program (HMGP) - Santa submit the drainage project 
Rosa Drainage as possible for HMGP consideration 

Works Budget - Handout 
Under Separate Cover 

V.A 

- 
City Engineer DirectorIProject 

Enaineer - Jave 1 20i1 
candidate 
FY2012 Proposed Public No action requested or 

Richard D. Johnson, PE; Director 

taken - presentation for 
information purposes only 

August 17,201 "1 

NIA 
 embers review and note 
comments. Will hold in-depth 
review and discussions at the 
September PWC Meeting 

~olbertson, PE 
N/A Requested that Committee 

44



Page 1 of 2 

Suzanne 

From: Kim Briley [kmbriley@beilsouth.netJ 

Sent: Monday, August 22,201 1 933 AM 

To: 'DirectorPW 

Cc: hensonsm@bellsouth.net; 'Mayor Small' 

Subject: RE: City of Daphne - Public Works Committee - 08-15-201 1 

Mayor, 

What would you like to do? 

Kim 

Notice of Action Taken 

From: DirectorPW [mailto:directorpw@belIsouth.net] 
Sent: Monday, August 22, 201 1 9:26 AM 
To: 'Kim Briley' 
Cc: hensonsm@bellsouth.net; 'Mayor Small' 
Subject: RE: City of Daphne - Public Works Committee - 08-15-2011 - Notice of Action Taken 

No urgency on our end. However, are we talking strictly based on after September 3oth or based on after the date 
that the Council adopts the 201 1-12 budget? Which could very well mean sometime in calendar 2012. 

I know Streets would like to conduct most of the construction in the dry period of the fall (Oct-Nov) this time is less 
hectic and prior to holidays and parades. It is your call. 

Yours. 

RDJ 

Richard D. Johnson, P.E. 
Public Works Director 
26435 Public Works Road 
Daphne, AL 36526 

Phone: (251) 621-3182 
Fax: (251) 621 -31 89 
Cell: (251) 379-1305 

From: Kim Briley [mailto:kmbriley@bellsouth,net] 
Sent: Monday, August 22, 2011 8:08 AM 
To: 'DirectorPW' 
Cc: hensonsm@bellsouth,net; 'Mayor Small' 
Subject: RE: City of Daphne - Public Works Committee - 08-15-2011 - Notice of Action Taken 

My recommendation would be to place the Randall Ave Sidewalk in the 2012 budget. Is there an urgency that it 
cannot wait for that? 

Kim 

From: DirectorPW [maiito:directorpw@bellsouth.net] 
Sent: Wednesday, August 17, 2011 11:27 AM 
To: Bailey Yelding; Becky in the Clerk's Office; Councilman Lake; Councilwoman Barnette; David Cohen; Dorothy 

45



Page 2 of 2 

Morrison; Jane Ellis; 3aye Robe~son; Kim Briley; Mayor Fred Small; Seo& with HMR; Suzanne Henson; Tim 
Lawley 
Cc: Buck Conaway; Candice Bishop; Denise Penry; Duke Crukhfield; Dwayne Coley; Dwayne Goley; Frank 
Barnett; Freddie Johnson; 'Melvin McCarley'; 'Sandi Cushway'; Tracey Miller 
Subject: City of Daphne - Public Works Committee - 08-15-2011 - Notice of Action Taken 

Yours, 

RDJ 

Richard D. Johnson, P.E. 
Public Works Director 
26435 Public Works Road 
Daphne, AL 36526 

Phone: (251) 621 -3182 
Fax: (251) 621-3189 
Cell: (251) 379-1305 

No virus found in this message. 
Checked by AVG - 
Version: 10.0.1392 / Virus Database: 152013850 - Release Date: 08/22/11 

46



Fred Srnall 
Mayor 

David Cohen 
City Clerk 

Kimberly Briley 
Finance DirectorfTreasurer PUBLIC WORKS 
Richard D. Johnson, P.E. 
Director of I'ublic Works 

Bailey Yelding, Jr. 
District 1 

Cathy Barnette 
District 2 

John L. Lake 
District 3 

Kelly D. Reese 
District 4 

Ronald Scan 
D~strlct 5 

Derek Boulware 
District 6 

August Palulnbo 
District 7 

To: Councilinan Yelding, Chairman 
Public Works Committee 

Thru: Honorable Mayor Fred Small 

Cc: Kim Briiey - Finance Director -, 4 

From: Richard D. Johnson, P.E 
Public Works Director 

\"--- 
Date: August 8, 201 1 

RE: Capital Budget Request for sidewalks on Randall Avenue 

I am requesting the Public Works Committee recommend to the Finance Committee a Capital 
Roadway Improvement Appropriation of $60,385.42 for the installation of a sidewalk on the 
north side of Randall Avenue from U.S. Highway 98 to Deerwood at Pollard Road (t 4,000 
linear feet). 

All needed property owners have signed required Right of Entry and Sidewalk Easements and 
are on file with Public Works. Furthermore, the Committee may want to consider an additional 
appropriation of $74,256.18 for the resurfacing of Randall Avenue from U.S. Highway 98 to 
Pollard Road in conjunction with the sidewalk project. 

Attached are the construction cost estimates for the sidewalk and resurfacing. 

Yours, 

RDJ 

Page 1 of 1 

47



Publie Works Director Estimated Costs 

Ciltp/ sf Daphne Street Bmprovements - Fisead Year 2012 

Project : 2012 Randall Avenue Sidewalks 

Cost Per Linear ~ o o t l  $1 5.1 0 

48



City of Daphne Streef %mprovemen& - Fiscal Year 20.192 

Project : 2012 Randall Avenue Sidewalks 

s 2, Type A, Traffic Stripe, 5" Wide (701-A) 

Estimated Total Cost Per ~ i l e l  $98,018.16 1 
Cost Per Linear ~ o o t l  $18.56 

49



PUBLIC WORKS i 
Date: August 23,201 i 

Invoice #: 201 1-13 

City sf Daphne 
Division sf Public Works 
26435 Blirbiis Works Rd 
Daphne, Ab 36526 
251 -621 -3182 

TO: Daphne Utilities 
P 0 Box 2550 
Daphne, AL 36526 

Location of Work Description of Work Due Date 

Johnson Rd Lift Station Survey and plat work performed for land swap agreement 
Due upon receipt 

Art Center Water Tower Cosi to be split between Daphne Utilities and City of Daphne 

Q ~ Y  Description Unit Price Line Tofal 
HMR Invoice I 15850- Water Tower and Art Center 2-1.01 Exempt 
Subdivision $ 5,864.51 J 2.932.26 

HMR lnvoice 115852- Lift Station on Johnson Rd 2-Lof Exernpi 
Subdivision 

TOTAL DUE $ 4,538.81 

Richard John PW Director 

Make all checks payable to City of Daphne 
Remit to: 

P. 0. Box 400, Daphne, AL 36526 

50



Page 1 o f  3 

Suzanne 

From: Denise Penry [accountantpw@bellsouth.net] 

Sent: Wednesday, August 24, 201 1 1:05 PM 

To: 'Kim Briley'; 'DirectorPW' 

Cc: hensonsm@bellsouth.net 

Subject: RE: Invoices (Daphne Utilities Land Swap) 

Attachments: 201 1-1 3 Daphne Utilities.pdf; -Certification-,htm 

Kima;, 

Attached is the invoice to Daphne Utilities that will go out this week, 

Denise Penry 
PW AccountanL 
City od" Daphne 
251-621 -318% 

From: Kim Briley [mailto:kmbriley@bellsouth.net] 
Sent: Tuesday, August 23, 2011 1:22 PM 
To: 'DirectorPW' 
Cc: hensonsm@bellsouth,net; 'Denise Penry' 
Subject: RE: Invoices 

Richard, 

I have been out of the loop on this as well. We have not discussed this in the Finance Comm, so I will need lo 
take it there & tthen to the Council for appropriation .... When we gel some direction from the Council, I would 
prefer that Denise invoice the Utility. 

Thanks, 
Kim 

From: DirectorPW [mailto:directorpw@bellsouth.net] 
Sent: Tuesday, August 23, 2011 12:45 PM 
To: 'Kim Briley'; Suzanne Henson 
Cc: Scott with HMR; Denise Penry 
Subject: FW: Invoices 

Mrs. Briley: 

See attached invoices. These are associated with the land swap with Daphne Utilities as approved by the 
Council. This "swap" begin prior to my arrival. It was my understanding that the City and the Utility would split and 
then share the cost equally for the survey and plat work performed. Can you follow-up on the status as well as the 
cost center for this to be charged to. Would you prefer Denise invoice the Utility or can you handle this. 

Thanks, 

RDJ 

Richard D. Johnson, P.E. 
Public Works Director 
26435 Publie Works Road 

51



Page 3 of 3 

HUTCHINSON, MOORE & ~ U C H ,  ELC 
I?N(;INI 1311S + SURVI YORS + I h N I l  1'1 ANY1 RS 

P.0 Box 1127 Daphne, AL 36526 
Tel: 251.626 2626 Fax: 251.626.6934 

From: Barbara Garner [mailto:barbara@hmrengineers.com] 
Sent: Monday, August 22, 2011 2:06 PM 
To: 'Scott Hutchinson' 
Subject: Invoices 

Hutchinson, Moore & Rauch, LLC 
2039 Main Street 
Daphne, BL 36526 
251.626.2626 

52



Hutchinson, Moore & Rauch, L1.C 
Post OMice Box 1127 March 31,201 1 

Daphne, AX, 36526 Project No: 3599-10.01 
invoice No: 1 15852 

Richard Johnson 
City of Daphne 
Post Office Box 400 
Dapline, AL 36526 

Project Manager Brcil Godwin 

Project 3599-10.01 XJR Station on Jol~nson Road 2 Lot Exempt Subdivision 
Professional Services for the P m r v  28.2011 to March 2 7 m  

Professional Personnel 

Hours Rate Arnount 

Bunch, Donald 
Gandy, Jason 
Godwin, Brcil 
Goolsby, Casey 
Larsorz, 'Tyler 
Williams, Larry 

'Totals 
Total Labor 

Total Project Invoice Amount 

- -- 

Please Remit to Hutchinson, Moore & Rauch, LLC 
P 0 Box i 127, Daphne, Alnbamd 36526 

For Assrslance (25 1 )  626-2626 

53



Hutehinson, Moore & Rauch, LLC 
Post Officc Box 1127 March 3 1 ,20  1 1 

Daphne, AL 36526 Project No: 3598-10.0 1 
Invoice NO: 115850 

Richard Jol>nson 
City of Daphne 
Post OMice Box 400 
Daphne, AL 36526 

Project Manager Ercil Godwin 

Project 3598-10.01 Water Tower and Art Center ZLot Exempt Subdivision 
ices for the P p e h  27,20 Professional Serv . ( 11 

Profcssionnl Personnel 
Hours Rntc Aniount 

Byrd, Canleron 
Ga~tdy, Jason 
Godwin, Ercil 
Gaolsby, Casey 
Larson, Heath 
Middleton, Quinton 
Williams, Larry 

Totals 
Total Labor 

Total Project Invoice Amount 

Pleasc Remit to: Hulchinson, Moorc & Rauch, LLC 
I'. 0. Box 1127, Daphne, Alabama 36526 

For Assistance: (25 1 )  626-2626 

54



Fred Small 
Mayor 

David Cohen 
City Clerk 

Kimberlv Rrilev 
< .  

Fiiiencz Directorfl rcasurer 

Klchard I3 Johnson. P F PUBLIC WORKS 1 
Director of Public Works 

Raiicy Yelding, Jr. 
District I 

Cathy Hainelti: 
District 2 

John L L:ake 
l31slnct 3 

Kelly D. Reese 
District 4 

tlotiald Scott 
D~slr~cf  5 

Attgust Palumho 
District 7 

To: The Honorable Mayor Fred Small .-F>d 
From: Richard D. Johnson, P.E.; Public Works Director kd $-O 

'9 CC: Councilmall Derek Boulware; Chairman, Finance Committee; ICinz riley, 
Finance Director; VolkerZ, Inc.; File 

Date: August 31,2011 

Re: FJ12012 - Capital Road Irnprovemer~t Projects - U.S I-Iwy 98 and Couilty Road 
64 Intersection Improvernei~t Project 

Mr. Mayor: 

Based upon the bid tabulations provided and certified by Andrew E. James, P.E., Volkert, Inc., 
on August 30, 201 1, it is my recommendation to award the Contract to Asphalt Services, lnc. for 
the proposed Highway 98 and County Road 64 Intersection Improvement s. They are the 
qualifLing low bidder at $799,998.73. 

This is a cooperative project between the City and ALD0T. The cost of construction is split 
evenly between the City and State. The State will pay 100% of the cost signal improvements 
(design, procurement and installation) associated with this project. 

I request we expedite any and all necessary appropriations 

Yours, 

RDJ 

Page 1. of I 

55



KERT 316 South McKenzie Street 
Foley, AL 36535 

Office 251.968.7551 
Fax 251.968.2318 
foley@volkert.com 

August 3 0,20 1 1 

2011-Z-Intersection Improvements at U.S. 98 and GounCy Road 64 
Contract No. 968512.50 
State Project No. ST-002-42-019 

Mr. Richard Johnson, P.E. 
Public Works Director 
City OF Daphne 
26435 Public Walks Road 
Daphne, Alabama 36526 

Subject: Bid Tabulation 

Dear Mr. Johnson: 

Enclosed please find the original envelopes, bid documents and bid tabulation for the 
above referenced project. After checking the submitted proposals, we recominend that 
the project be awarded to Asphalt Services, Inc a Contractor who is licensed to do 
busiiiess in the State of Alabania, with a bid of $799,998.73. 

If you have any questions or comments, please call at your convenience. 

Sincerely, 

VOLKERT, INC. 

Andrew E. James, P.E. 
Project Manager 

Enclosures: Bid Tabulation 
Cc: Suzanne Henson - City of Daphne, Daniel Driskell - ALDOT, Randy Davis - Volkert 

Office Locations: 
Birmingham, Foley, Huntsville, Mobile, Alabama 0 Gainesville, Orlando, Pensacola, Tampa, Florida Atlanta, Georgia 
Collinsville, Illinois . Baton Rouge, Slidell, Louisiana 0 Biloxi, Mississippi Jefferson City, Missouri - Raleigh, North Carolina 
Chattanooga, Tennessee * Alexandria, Virginia * Washington, D.C. 

56



CITY OF DAPHNE 
BIB MINUTES SHEET 
CITY OF DAPHNE 

BID DOCUMENT NO: 2011-2-INTERSECTION IMPROVEMENTS AT U.S. 98 & COUNTY ROAD 64 
81291201 1 
2:OOPM 

PRESENT WERE: 
Andy James Volkert 
Michael Metzger Volkert 
Suzanne Henson Senior Accountant Engineer's Estimate: $1,000,000 

INVITATlONS TO BID WERE MAILED, PICKED-UP, E-MAILED OR FAXED, SEALED BlDS WERE RECEIVED. 

THE PRESENTED BIDS WERE OPENED AND THE BlDS WERE READ ALOUD AS FOLLOWS: 

Suzanne ~ensoQenior Accountan f 

57



?OII-LINTERSECTION MROVEMENTS TO U.S. EUGHWAY 98 &COUNTY ROAD 64 -DAPHNE 
ST-002-42-019 

liNlT R m  TARIII.ATION 

58



2011-%INTERSECTION IMPROVEMENTS TO U.S. UIGHWAY 98 & COUNTY ROAD 61 -DAPHNE 
1T-nn?d?n19 

Grand Total $799,998.73 $847,257.80 $878,482.86 $909,222.43 $929,186.50 $968,665.50 $984,949.01 

Asphalt Services, Inc had arithmetic errors on bid item #35 in the amount $0.26. The resulting total bid is 799,998.73 in lieu of 799,998.99. 

Hosea Weaver And Sons had arithmetic errors on bid item #2 in the amount of $1 8.00. The error did not change their total bid. 

Gulf Equipment Corp. had arithemetic errors on bid item #66 in the amount of $45.90. The resulting total bid is $984,949.01 in lieu of $984.995.00 

I, Andrew E. James, do hereby state that this is a true and correct tabulation of bids to the best of my knowledge and belief 

This, the 30th Day of August, 201 1 

59



1S?rlployers9 
Stct;c St;ctc Ptiiicr Pirhiic .ludici;il 

i?,oberl J. Benrlcy. t'ii:iir 
.John 11, t l ' i l k e r w n .  Jc. Vice C'liiiir 

The Retirement Systems sf Alabama 
David G. Brorii;ei., CEO 

MSICUS H. Reyllolds, Jr.. Dc~litty 

August 311,201 4 

TO: Local Units 
l i 

a j,,' 
FROM: WilliamF.Kellcy,Jr, k.\/#- 

Director of Benefits -'. 
Emp10yecs9 Retircmclat System 

RE: Attol~leg; General's Opinioll20 I. 1-090 

Pursua~t to Opinion 201.1-090, isstxcd by the Attonley Gelaeral on August 22, 201 1, retiremenlt 
coi~trihtioms sklouXd no longer be subn~itted on overtime pay and stibsisi-encc allowances. This 
change takes effect im~nediately and applies prospectively. KO changcs or adjustme~ats will kc: 
made to prior contributions. 

cc: File 

60



LUTHER S T R A N G E  
KtTORNEY GENERAL 

STATE OF ALABAMA 

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL 
501 WAStllNGTON AVENUE 

P.O. BOX 300152 
MONTGOMERY. AL 36130-0152 

(334) 242.7300 
WW.AGO.STATE.AL.lJ5 

I-Toi~orable Thoillas L. White, Jr. 
State  Colnptroller 
Departlneiit o f  Finance 
100  North Union Street,  Suite 220 
Montgomery, Alabama 36 130-2620 

I-Ionorable Jackie  Grahai-~i 
Director,  State Personnel Departilnent 
300 Folsom A d ~ n i ~ ~ i s t r a l i v e  Builclitlg 
M o n t g o l ~ ~ e r y ,  A l a b a ~ ~ z a  36130-41 00 

State  Co~llptrol ler  - Persotlnel Department 
- Over t i i l~e  Pay - Subsistence Allowatlce - 
Retirement Benefits - Cor~npensation 

Only the salary an iliclividual is normally 
entitled to receive 011 a semi-~l ionthly basis 
i s  "earnable compensation" as that term i s  
used i n  section 36-27-1 ( 1  4) of the Code of  
Alabama. Overtime pay~ilents  a re  not 
salary as that term is used in  section 36-  
27-24(b) of  the Gocie, and may  not be  usccl 
for rctire~ilelit calculatioil purposes.  

"Earnable compe~lsation" as used in 
s cc t io~ i  36-27-l(14)  o r  the CocZe does not 
iticlucle subsistence pay, but  is li~liitecl to 
the ilorlnal salary an employce rcceivcs for 
a semi-l~lonthly pay periocl. 

Dear Mr.  White  ancl Ms. Graham: 

This  opinion of the Attorney Gcneral is issued in response to your 
rcquest.  

61



I-Ionorable Thornas L. Wtiite, J r .  
I-lonosable Jackie Graliam 
Page 2 

QUESTION 1 

Is ovcrtinic pay co~~s i t i c r cd  "carliable 
compcnsat iot~" as that tern1 is used in section 36-27- 
l (14 )  of  thc Cocle of  Alabariia co~icern ing  retirellic~it 
benefits? 

FACTS AND ANALYSIS 

The  Employees'  Retireliicnt Systcin of Alabama, as set forth in scction 36-  
27-1, ef seq. ,  of the Code of  Alabama, provides a defined benefit  plan fo r  
c c r t a i ~ i  employees of the State of Alabanla whose salary is paid by a s t a t e  
warrant.  ALA. CODE §5$ 36-27-1 thru 36-27-31 (2001, Supp.  2010). Specifically,  
sectioll 36-27-24(b) provides that "each employer shall  cause to be  deducted 
from the snE6ti.y of each tlleinber on each and cvcry payroll of such elilployer f o r  
each aiid every payroll period five percent of his earilultle cot~lperosnliorz." 
ALA. C O D E  9 36-27-24(b) (Supp. 2010) (emphasis added).  

""Earnable compensation" is defined as ""[]he full  rate of compensation 
that would be payablc to an e~np loyec  if he or she worked the full  rzorritnl work- 
time. In cases where compciisation includes maintenance, the Board of Control  
sllall Six thc value of that past o f  the compensation ~ i o t  paid in moncy." A L A .  
CODE $ 36-27- l (14)  (2001).  

'Thc statutory provisions goverrlislg the Retirement Syste~i is  of Alabama clo 
not allow for contributions on extraordinary payments.  See Mitchell v .  
E ~ ~ p l o j j e e s '  Rel ' iren~ent Sys. o 1 642 So.  2d 480,  491 (Ala. 1994) 
(disal lowing retirement c a l c u l a t i o ~ ~ s  on sick and a~znual Icavc paytnents). S ta te  
law clearly pr-ovidcs that deductiolis for retirement stlall be made S r o ~ ~ l  an  
cmployce 's  sa lary .  By dcfinilion, "overtime9' is not ""salary." 

Tlie S ta te  Pcrsoililel Board, wit11 the approval of the  Governor,  establislies 
a pay plali sett ing forth the salary of cacli class of positiolis witliiii thc Mer i t  
Syslcn?. Eacll i~lcl ividi~al  witl i i~l tllc Mcrit S y s t c ~ n  must be pait! a ratc or sa la ry  
within thc pay plan that is based upon a semi-monthly pay schetlule. See ALA. 
CODE 3 36-6- l (c)  (SUPP. 20 10) (all classil'ictl ancl unclassiCicd c ~ ~ l p l o y c c s  s l ~ a l i  
be paid s c m i - ~ ~ ~ o n l l i l y  one p;ty day in  arrears).  

Pu r s i~an t  lo s ta te  law, tllc salary oC cach c~l ip loyec  is based upon a semi-  
\ inoallrly ratc, regardless o i  ihc lirimber of hours i n  ihc se~iii-iilontliiy pay pcriod.  

170s example,  cluriiig a calendar ycar, the scmi-ilionthly pay period co~itail is 72,  
80, 88,  ancl 96 work hours tle13enciing, on the work days contaitlccl witllisi each 
sc~ni- tuoi i thly tirnc pcriocl. Rcgarclless, liowcvcr, of tlic tiumbcr o r  fiorrrs within 
thc scmi-moattl ly t imc perioci, an c11113Ioy~~s salzuy r c ~ ~ i ~ j ~ ~ s - c - o z ~ s t a ~ ~ I .  

7 

62



t-lor~orable 'Thon?as L. While,  J r .  
E-Ionorable Jackie GraIia111 
Page 3 

Additiotlally, Rule 670-X-11-.01 and .04 of tlic Rules of the State  
Pcrsot l~lcl  Board establish uniform regulalioiis for all cs~iployces uliclcr tllc State  
Merit  Systeix ancl rcquiscs the ilurnbcr of ho~rrs  lo  be  ulliforll~ for all employees 
wliose positioris arc  allosated to the saille class, unless specifically providcd 
otherwise by actioti o f  tlie Board. A "lRegular Work Wcek" is described as a 40- 
llour work week. (A 40-liour week sliall be used for the purpose of calc~zlatii ig 
the pay  of  erliployees paid 011 a semi-slionlhiy basis.) .  ALA. ADMIN.  CODE r.  
670-X-11-.O1 ancl 670-X-11--04 (eff. June 26, 2006).  The Stale Persollnel Board 
Rules,  not in coslflict with the laws of Alabama, have tlie force and effect  o f  
law. See ,  ALA. CODE 5 36-26-9 (2001). With respect to state law esiforcelllellt 
officers,  sectioli 36-21-4 of the Code specifically provides that a normal work 
wcck i s  a 40-hour week. ALA. CODE 5 36-21-4 (2001).  

ThercSore, based upon the foregoing, only the salary all illdividual is 
normally entitlcd to receive on a s e m i - ~ n o ~ i t h l y  basis is "carnablc competisation" 
a s  that  tcrrn is used in  section 36-27-1(14) of the Code.  Overtime payments are  
not salary as that lerrn is uscd in scctioll 36-27-24(b) o f  the Code, mid iilay not 
b e  used for rctireriient calculatiotl purposcs. 

CONCLUSION 

Otily tlie salary an i t~dividual  is normally elltitled to receive on a semi-  
monthly basis is "earnablc compensation'' as that tern1 is used in scction 36-27-  
I ( l 4 )  of  the Coclc. Overtime paytiietlts are not salary as that teriil is used i n  
sectiotl 36-27-24(b)of the Coclc, and snay not be  used for ret i rc~ncl l t  ca lcu la t io~l  
purposes.  

QUESTION TWO 

Is subsistence pay, which is not compensation lor 
state income tax purposcs, colzsidcred carsiable 
compensation for re t i rc~l lc~l t  purposcs under section 36- 
27- l (14)  of (he  Code? 

FACTS AND ANALYSIS 

Subsistence pay for l aw cnforccrncnt off icers  W A S  cstablisl~cct by slatc 
lcgislatiotl in 1973. ALA.  CODE $ 36-21-2 (Supp. 2010).  Tile rccognizcd 
purpose o r  this subsistcnce allowatlce was to provide specific law cnforccn~cnl  
ernployccs a mcans to pay "for thcir tiicals as tiley r+egrrlar.Iy journcy thc 
higliway ancl isolatcti arcas away from tlicir assignccl du ly  station whiIc 
clischarging tlicir dutics." O p i n ~ o n  to I-Ionorable R.G.  Britlon, Commissioner,  

63



H e a l t h  Hcsrizsns,  Hne. 

May 20,201 1 

Dear Sir or Madam: 

I apologize for the tardiness of these returns and any rardy returns in 2009 and 2010. 1 pray you will forgive 
any penaities and late fees. 

My wife and I run our small business and were needed to help my parents during this time. My father and 
mother have suffered from iilnesses and heafi attacks requiring hospitalizations and surgeries and we had to 
help care for them. They are both currently recovering and in seemingfy better heaith. 

Please forgive me, 

64



1789 Main St. 351 George St. 

Daphne,  Ab Mobile, AL 
""Old iib~vn" 36604 

(251 j 626-6082 "Oakieigh" 
(251 ) 694-0606 

Kris  Conlon 
Chemwner 

"Everything you eat . . . we make from scratch" 

65



V) - x 
cc 
I 
T- 
r- 
0 
N 
a, - 
I) 

F 
X 

2 
0 
2 m 
(I) 
0 .- - 
Ll c: 
k 
0 

4 
0 
0 
F: 
W 
0 a 
3 
L n  

2 

E W 

0 
n 
3 

2 
a, 0 

% 
N 

Y- 

7 

0 
h] 

03- 
+4 

n 
er 
(I) 

a, 
2 .,- 
0 

$ 
66



67



68



A RESOkeB"O"IC3N DECLARING CERTAIN PERSONAL PROPER""P SURPLUS AND 
AUTHORIZING "THE MAYOR TO DISPOSE OF SUCH PROPERTY 

WHEREAS, the Beparimenfieads of the City of Daphne have determined that the items listed 
below are no longer required for public or municipal purposes; and 

WHEREAS, the items listed below are recommended for disposal 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Daphne 
that 

I- The property listed below is hereby declared to be surplus property, and 

BEPT TAGNEH# DESGRIP"F0N VIN # I SERIAL # 
Recycling-Trans 

fr Garb 8/10 790 2000 MACK RD888S GARBAGE TRUCK 1 M2P296C8YM053009 

2- The Mayor is authorized to advertise and accept bids through Govdeals.com as 
contracted for the sale of such personal properiy, and 

3- The Mayor is authorized to sell said property to the highest bidder and deposit any and 
all proceeds to the General Fund. The Mayor is further authorized to direct: the 
disposition of any property which is not claimed by any bidder. 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 
ALABAMA, this day of ,2011. 

Cathy S, Barnelte, Council Eresiderlt 

Fred Small, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

David L. Cohen, City Clerk CMC 

69



Buildings & Property Committee Meeting 
Monday, September 7, 2011   5:30 PM 

Daphne City Hall 
 

Committee 
Councilman John Lake 

Councilman Derek Boulware 
Mayor Fred Small 

Richard Merchant, Building Official 
Frank Barnett, Maintenance Supervisor 
Margaret Thigpen, Civic Center Director 

 
Committee Minutes (Summary) 

 
Present:  Mayor Fred Small, Councilman Derek Boulware, Councilman John Lake, Richard 
Johnson, Public Works Director; Frank Barnett, Maintenance Supervisor; Margaret Thigpen, 
Civic Center Director; Ashley Campbell – Building Department; Jane Ellis, Mayor’s Assistant 
 

A.) Minutes from August Meeting: Motion made to approve minutes from August Meeting.  
Approved.   
 

 
B.) Building Maintenance – Frank Barnett reported back to the committee that it would be 

cost prohibitive to have the police monitor the Nicholson Center building for fire as 
opposed to Hunter Security.   He is waiting on a quote from Hunter security to submit a 
quote for the Boys & Girls Club. 
 
 

C.) Civic Center Report – Margaret reported that the stairs at Bayfront have to be replaced.  
Frank said he had looked at them and there is no longer any support left and they need 
to be torn down and new stairs put in.  He has a quote for $2500 and recommends to 
move forward as it is a safety issue as well.   Motion made to take this request of $2500 
be allocated to replace the stairs at the Bayfront facility to the next Finance 
Committee.  
 
August numbers are attached.  Margaret reported on the  Taste of the Easter Shore 
event and its results.  Expenses have not been deducted from this amount and it was 
noted by the Mayor that the City also contributes about $8000 to this event to cover 
civic center costs.  
 

70



The committee had as Margaret to look at other venues besides the Zydeco Festival and 
she mentioned of course the Jubilee Festival, a Bridal Show and a Christmas Show.  She 
is waiting on 501c-3 information and guidelines. 
 
The committee also asked her to look at the Nicholson Center for future use.  It needs a 
tremendous amount of work to make improvements and to bring it under ADA and 
building code requirements.   
 
John Lake discussed the idea that perhaps Huntingdon College may be interested in the 
Nicholson Center.  The Mayor stated we need to get rid of the Nicholson Center as the 
city continues to pay the utility bills on the property.   Richard Johnson suggested that 
perhaps Bayside may want the property for additional parking.  You could take down 
the building as only the site has historical heritage not the building itself.  
 
John Lake said he would contact Huntingdon College contact, Jennifer Ishler, to see if 
they would be interested in looking at the Nicholson Center.  
 
Margaret reported on upcoming events such as Emeril Lagassee, Black & White 
Ballroom Dance, Baldwin Pops and the Forgotten Carols Musical. 
 
D.  Building Department Reports – Ashley Campbell reported on the August activity (see 
attached).  
 
E.  Other Business – Richard Johnson commended the work done at the dog park saying 
the pavilion placed there looked really good and was already getting good use.  Also, he 
reported that Daphne Utilities had completed the modular bathrooms installed at 
Bayfront. 
 

 
 

Meeting Adjourned. 
 
 

71



CITY OF DAPHNE CHAIRMAN - Councilman Bailey Yelding, District 1 

PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE MEETING Councilwoman Cathy Barnette, District 2 

Time: 5:00 PM on August 15, 2011  Councilman John Lake, District 3 

Location: City Hall Council Chambers 

 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER  
  The August meeting of the Public Works Committee was called to order at 5:08 PM   

 

Present: Councilman Bailey Yelding, Councilwoman Cathy Barnette, Councilman John Lake, 

Richard D. Johnson-Director Public Works, Sandra Cushway-PW Administrative 

Assistant, Jaye Robertson-HMR, Jay Dickson-Volkert, Steve Commander-Volkert, 

Randy Davis-Volkert, Dorothy Morrison-Daphne Beautification Committee 

 

II. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION & CORRESPONDENCE 
A. Work Request Report – July 2011 reports reviewed 

B. Vehicle/Equipment Maintenance Report – July 2011 report reviewed.  Councilwoman 

Barnette questioned why Police repairs were up so high.  Richard Johnson to check with 

Mechanical Maintenance to determine why and report back to Councilwoman Barnette. 

C. Public Participation – Steve Commander, Randy Davis and Jay Dickson (Volkert) RE: Street 

Evaluation Presentation.  Steve Commander reported that the streets were evaluated to 

prioritize and were mapped using GPS mapping system.  A little background into report.  

Gulfport, MS was mapped.  They had 500 miles of streets, resulting in 1700 inspection reports 

in three months.  They then coordinated with the Staff and City Council.  Each street requires 

a separate report.  Streets are then classified.  Anything below 70 (out of 100) is considered 

“poor” condition.  Traffic levels are taken into consideration as well.  Reports are broken 

down by districts.  Randy Davis stated that their evaluation reports are used by ALDOT to 

rank county roads, only slightly modified but with a possible score of 100.  Is considered a 

Federal report.  All of the reports are subjective, but are done by experienced evaluators. 

Reports can be modified to suit the City’s needs.  When a street is rated as “poor”, the report 

includes repair options and anticipated cost.  Jay Dickson added that Randy’s field reports are 

entered into an access database with scores for each element.  This generates road reports.  It 

was set up this way to manage all the data.  It includes GIS information based on pavement 

conditions.  You can zoom in on streets.  The report includes actual width measurements and 

all elements of the street and surface.  It is a dependable and accurate method to determine 

which streets need repairs.  Richard Johnson reported that he is familiar with this technology.  

City employees can be trained and can maintain database once it is established.  Is a powerful 

tool. We need to keep this system in mind as we go forth.  This type of system would also be 

useful to track drainage.  Councilman Yelding thanked Steve, Randy and Jay for their 

presentation and advised them to keep in touch with Richard.  Steve Commander said that he 

estimates that it would cost approximately $20-40,000 to set up Daphne, depending on how 

much data the City wants. 

D. Correspondence – NONE 

 

III. OLD BUSINESS  

A. Minutes – July 26, 2011  Councilwoman Barnette made a motion to accept the minutes; 

motion seconded by Councilman Yelding. 

B. Mosquito Reports – July 2011 – It was noted that they are still not spraying the south side of 

Park City.  Richard Johnson will discuss with Supervisor to ensure that all areas are being 

treated. 
C. Street Sweeper Reports – July 2011 reports reviewed.   
D. Environmental Advisory Committee – Three (3) Members appointed. It was recommended 

that Richard Johnson and Ashley Campbell be considered members only in an advisory 

capacity.  Councilwoman Barnette stated that the Environmental Committee is on the 

Council’s agenda for tonight’s meeting.  Richard Johnson said that it is time to start discussing 72



objectives, goals, etc. for the committee.   

E. Randall Avenue Sidewalks Request for Appropriations – Received signed easement by 

residents.  Total cost of sidewalk is estimated at $60K.  Also calculated the estimated cost of 

resurfacing road.  Councilwoman Barnette stated that she would like to see where Randall 

Avenue stands on the list of roads to be repaired before making a commitment to resurface. 

Councilman Lake stated that we need to determine which roads are failing.  Richard Johnson 

said that Randall Avenue is falling apart structurally. Richard made a request for 

appropriation.  Councilwoman Barnette made a motion to request appropriation of funds 

from the Finance Committee for $60K for sidewalks on Randall Avenue.  Motion was 

seconded by Councilman Lake.  All in favor.  Motion passed. 
 

IV. NEW BUSINESS 

A. Hazard Mitigation Grant Program (HMGP) – Santa Rosa Drainage as possible 

candidate – Richard stated that there is a push for a municipal emergency mitigation plan.  

The grant has a 75/25 match.  Trying to get a meeting with school officials, but it is the first 

week of school so they are unavailable until things calm down. 

 
V. DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

A. FY2012 Proposed Public Works Budget – Handout Under Separate Cover.  A first draft 

of the budget was presented to the Mayor a month ago.  Justifications and capital needs are 

included.  We have the skills and ability to many jobs and would like to get appropriations for 

paving and concrete so we aren’t constantly asking for appropriations. Councilwoman 

Barnette stated that asking for appropriations is not necessarily a bad thing.   

 

VI. SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY 

A. Monthly Equipment Use Report  
B. Monthly Recycle Tonnage Report (Last Quarter Tonnage Comparison).   

C. The two new Recycling trucks are operational.  Richard Johnson expressed his appreciation 

for the council approving them.   

 

VII. MUSEUM COMMITTEE 

A. Minutes – July 11, 2011. Minutes reviewed. 

 

VIII. BEAUTIFICATION COMMITTEE 

A. Minutes – August 4, 2011 

B. Top Ten List  

C. Update – Dorothy Morrison reported that North Main Street is looking great.  Love the new 

Recycling trucks.  Working with David McKelroy and Dwayne on Joe Lewis Patrick Park.  

The gazebo at Centennial Park is being utilized by residents.  Have noticed several parties 

being held there.  Can’t plant anything at Park City Park right now.  Need to gravel parking 

lot.  Councilman John Lake expressed that he would like to see it paved.  Councilwoman 

Barnette stated that gravel would work just fine.  Richard Johnson stated that both parks are 

on our list for planting of Crepe Myrtles and other plants.  Councilman Yelding stated that the 

step down at the gate is dangerous.  David McKelroy and Richard will look at options.   

 

IX. ENGINEER REPORT 

A. NRCS Update – None 

 

V. FUTURE BUSINESS 

A. Next Meeting – September 19, 2011 

 

XI. ADJOURNMENT   

The meeting adjourned at 6:08 PM.  

73



CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
REPORTS OF SPECIAL COMMITTEES 

 
NOTES: 
 
BOARD OF ZONING ADJUSTMENTS REPORT:
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
DOWNTOWN REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY REPORT: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT BOARD: 
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
LIBRARY BOARD: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
PLANNING COMMISSION REPORT: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
RECREATION BOARD REPORT: 
 
                                                                    
UTILITY BOARD REPORT: 
 
                                                                          
 
 
 

74



Daphne Public Library Board 

July 7, 2011 

Meeting Minutes 

 

 In Attendance: 

 

Library Director Tonja Young; Board Chair Jan Blankenhorn, Board Member Jim Bodman. 

 

1) Call to Order:  Board did not reach a quorum so there was no official meeting. 

 

75



Daphne Public Library Board 

August 4, 2011 

Meeting Minutes 

 

The August Meeting was cancelled due to vacations. 

 

76



MINUTES - 1 

 

 

APPROVED MINUTES 

Utilities Board Meeting 

         City of Daphne Council Chambers    July 27, 2011    5:00 p.m. 
        

 
I. Call to Order 

The regular July, 2011, Board meeting for the Utilities Board of the City of Daphne was held on July 27, 2011 and 

called to order by Chairman Robert Segalla, at 5:02 p.m. 
 

II. Roll Call 

 Members Present: Robert Segalla, Chairman 
 Fenton E. Jenkins, Vice Chairman  

 Lon Johnston, Secretary/Treasurer  
  

  Others Absent: Ron Scott 

 Fred Small, Mayor 
 
  Others Present: Jerry Speegle – Board Attorney  

 Rob McElroy – General Manager 

 Danny Lyndall – Operations Manager  
 Teresa Logiotatos – Finance Manager 

 Deloris Brown – Human Resources Manager 
 Drew Klumpp – Administrative Services Manager 

 Lori Scharles – Executive Assistant 
 Arlene Ethier – Operations Assistant 

 Melinda Immel – Volkert & Associates 

 Tim Patton – Volkert & Associates 
 Doug Bailey – HMR 

 Ray Moore - HMR 
 
 Others Absent:   
    

III. Pledge of Allegiance 

The Chairman led the Board and meeting attendees in the Pledge of Allegiance.  

 
 

IV. Approval of Minutes        

a. Utilities Board Minutes from June 29, 2011: 
The Chairman inquired if there were any corrections noted for the submitted Minutes from the June 29, 2011, 
Utilities Board meeting.  
   

MOTION BY Lon Johnston to approve the submitted Minutes for June 29, 2011; Seconded 

by Fenton Jenkins. 

77



MINUTES - 2 

AYE: JOHNSTON, JENKINS   ABSENT: SCOTT, SMALL    ABSTAIN:   SEGALLA    MOTION CARRIED 

  
V. Old Business 

a. Central Services Building – Update  
Danny Lyndall updated the board that the building is under construction, the slab has been poured, the metal 

framing is up and the contractors are working on the generator/electrical pad layouts on the outside of the 
building.  Doug Bailey stated that HMR is starting advertising for bids for road construction and expects to have 

the permit in three weeks.  Mr. Segalla reminded Mr. Bailey that they need to remain within budget. 
 

b. Spanish Fort Sewer Franchise issues 
No updated information was reported. 
 

c. Bay Front Park Bathrooms 
 Rob McElroy stated that the bathrooms have been ordered and will be delivered in four weeks. 
 

d. 19 Acres - Daphne Utilities property  
Mr. Segalla asked Mr. Speegle if the papers have been filed.  Mr. Speegle replied that all papers have been filed 

and recorded. 

e. Items in Abeyance 

1.  Gas Franchise Agreement – No current information was reported. 

 
VI. New Business  

a. Rob McElroy gave a public presentation on the Proposed Rate Increase, outlining the reasons for the rate 

increase, which include maintaining our bond covenants and infrastructure needs in order to meet State and 
Federal regulatory requirements.  Mr. McElroy stated that we are limiting expenses but the rate increase is still 

necessary in order to maintain the water and sewer system.  Mr. Segalla noted that the water and sewer 
operational issues that existed for 10 years in the past were pre-2004.  He asked that we prepare a Rate 

Resolution to be voted on at the next meeting.  Mr. Johnston stated that the rate increase is necessary and well 
within the range of other utilities’ rates. 

 

MOTION BY Lon Johnston to prepare a Rate Resolution. Seconded by Fenton Jenkins. 

AYE: JOHNSTON, SEGALLA, JENKINS   ABSENT: SCOTT, SMALL     ABSTAIN:        MOTION 
CARRIED 

 
  

VII. BOARD ATTORNEY’S REPORT 

 Mr. Speegle had nothing further to add to his report. 
 
 

VIII. FINANCIAL REPORT 
 Teresa Logiotatos reviewed the financials for the Board members.  She stated that monies at Compass Bank have 

been segregated into a construction fund to drawdown the construction of the Central Services Building. 
  

 
 

IX. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 

a. GM Report 
Rob McElroy had nothing further to add.  Mr. Segalla complimented the employees on 102,000 safe working 

hours.  Rob McElroy noted that the Customer Service report shows that the installation of the AMR radio read 
system is 40% complete. 

b. Operations Report 
Danny Lyndall had nothing further to add the Operations Report.   

 
Melinda Immel of Volkert & Associates had nothing further to add to her report. 

78



MINUTES - 3 

   

Doug Bailey from HMR had nothing further to add to his report. 
 

X. BOARD ACTION –  None 

 
XI. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  – None 

 
XII. BOARD COMMENTS – None 

 
XIII. ADJOURNMENT – 

 

 

MOTION BY Robert Segalla to adjourn the meeting. Seconded by Lon Johnston. 

AYE: JOHNSTON, SEGALLA, JENKINS   ABSENT: SCOTT, SMALL      ABSTAIN:        MOTION CARRIED 

 

The meeting adjourned at 5:29 pm.  

79



CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
MAYOR'S REPORT 

 
 

NOTES: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
  
 
 
 
 

80



CITY ATTORNEY’S REPORT 
 
NOTES:                                                              
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                   
 
                                                                    

                                                                    
DEPARTMENT HEAD’S COMMENTS  

 
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                   
 

                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                   
 
      
 
 
 
 

81



 
 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
RESOLUTIONS, ORDINANCES, ORDERS & OTHER BUSINESS 

 
NOTES: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                   
 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
 
 
 
 

82



RESOLUTION 2011- 65 
  2011-Z-INTERSECTION IMPROVEMENTS AT U.S. 98 & C.R.64 

  
 
WHEREAS, the City of Daphne is required under section 39-1-1(E) of the Code of Alabama to 
secure competitive bids for public works contracts in excess of $ 50,000; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Daphne acknowledges that INTERSECTION IMPROVEMENTS AT 
U.S. 98 & C.R.64 will exceed $50,000; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Daphne did receive and review bids for the INTERSECTION 
IMPROVEMENTS AT U.S. 98 & C.R.64 and has determined that the bid as presented is 
reasonable; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City did heretofore by Resolution 2010-51 approve an agreement with 
Alabama Department of Transportation (ALDOT) to reimburse the City 50% of project cost; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, staff recommends the bid for INTERSECTION IMPROVEMENTS AT U.S. 98 & 
C.R.64 be awarded to Asphalt Services, Inc.. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, AND IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, THAT THE 
MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, hereby accept the bid from 
Asphalt Services, Inc. in the amount of $799,998.73  as specified in BID SPECIFICATION NO. 
2011-Z-INTERSECTION IMPROVEMENTS AT U.S. 98 & C.R.64 with 50% of the contract cost 
to be reimbursed to the City from ALDOT.   
 
 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, this         day of                      , 2011. 
 

 
 
________________________________ 

                                                                       Cathy S. Barnette, Council President 
                                                                        
     

                                                                                                                                                                                              
                                                                      _________________________________ 
                                                                       Fred Small, Mayor 
                                                                            
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
David L. Cohen, City Clerk, MMC 

83



RESOLUTION 2011 - 66 
 
 

A RESOLUTION DECLARING CERTAIN PERSONAL PROPERTY SURPLUS  AND 

AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO DISPOSE OF SUCH PROPERTY 
 
 
WHEREAS,  the Department Heads of the City of Daphne have determined that the items listed 
below are no longer required for public or municipal purposes;  and 
 
WHEREAS, the items listed below are recommended for disposal. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED,  by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Daphne 
that  
 

1- The property listed below is hereby declared to be surplus property, and 
     

    

DEPT TAG/VEH# DESCRIPTION VIN # / SERIAL # 
Recycling-Trans 

fr Garb 8/10 790 2000 MACK RD688S GARBAGE TRUCK 1M2P296C8YM053009 
    

    
    

    
    
    

 
          2- The Mayor is authorized to advertise and accept bids through Govdeals.com as  
               contracted for the sale of such personal property, and 
 
          3-  The Mayor is authorized to sell said property to the highest bidder and deposit any and      
               all  proceeds to the General Fund.  The Mayor is further authorized to direct the           
               disposition of any property which is not claimed by any bidder. 
 
 
ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 

ALABAMA, this               day of                   , 2011. 
 
           

________________________________ 

                                                                              Cathy S. Barnette, Council President 

       

                                                                                                                                                                                            

_____________________________ 

                                                                              Fred Small, Mayor 

       

 

ATTEST: 

 

___________________________ 

David L. Cohen, City Clerk, MMC 

84



Resolution 2011- 67 
 

The City of Daphne request to the 
Alabama Department of Environmental Management (ADEM) 

for re-classification from a Phase I MS4 to a Phase II MS4 

 

WHEREAS, In regards to municipal storm water, the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination 
Systems (NPDES) program separates Municipal Separate Storm Sewer Systems (MS4s) into two 
categories for permitting: 
 
 1. Phase I MS4s includes “medium” MS4s (population of 100,000 or more but less 
 than 250,000) and “large” MS4s (population of 250,000 or more). 
  
 2. Phase II MS4s include “small” MS4s located within an “urbanized area”. An 
 urbanized area is defined as “A land area comprising one or more places, central 
 places, and the adjacent densely settled surrounding area, urban fringe, that 
 together have a residential population of at least 50,000 and an overall population 
 density of at least 1,000 people per square mile.  
 
WHEREAS, In September of 2001 ,the City of Daphne along with the City of Mobile and ten other 
permittees were designated as a Phase I MS4 and issued an Individual permit number #ALS000002 
by the ADEM. 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Daphne after discussions with ADEM, and the re-evaluation of the criteria 
listed below within the City’s boundaries, requests that ADEM review the City’s designation and 
reconsider its status from a Phase I MS4 to a Phase II. 
 
   1. Stormwater Regulations; 
   2. Existing Permit; 
   3. Population; 
   4. Land Use; 
   5. Impaired Streams; and, 
   6. Connectivity of Storm Sewer System. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Daphne that: 
 

1)   Authority is granted to the City’s Environmental Programs Manager to submit the official re-
designation request to ADEM. 
 
2)   The City Council understands that no additional funds will be required outside the 2011 
Building Departments budget. 

 
 
 
 

85



RESOLUTION 2011-67                                      MS-4 PERMIT                                     PAGE   2 

 
 

  APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF    
             DAPHNE, ALABAMA, this ________ day of ____________, 2010. 

 
 
 
      ______________________________ 
      Cathy Barnette, Council President 
       
 
      _______________________________ 
      Fred Small, Mayor 
       
 
ATTEST: 
___________________________ 
David L. Cohen, City Clerk, MMC 

86



Resolution 2011- 68 
 

Alabama Tourism Department Grant Application 2012 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Daphne proposes in constructing directional signage off 

of Interstate 10 to attract tourist off of the interstate to benefit businesses in the City of 

Daphne; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the city intends to make application to the Alabama Department of 

Tourism for grant assistance to create directional signage; and 

  

 WHEREAS, said programs are limited to funding a maximum of one hundred 

percent ($25,000) of the proposed project cost estimates at ($25,000) which will be used 

to improve directional signage to foster and increase tourism in Daphne, Alabama. 

 

 NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the City of Daphne hold make 

application for the Alabama Department of Tourism Grant Application for 2012, and 

 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that in the event a grant is awarded, the City of 

Daphne understands that it will sign assurances to comply with all applicable Federal and 

State laws, rules and regulations. 

 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA, this___________ day of ___________, 2011. 

       

 

      ___________________________ 

      Cathy Barnette,  

Council President 

      Date & Time Signed: __________ 

 

      ____________________________ 

      Fred Small,  

Mayor 

      Date & Time Signed: __________ 

ATTEST: 

 

____________________________ 

David L. Cohen,  

City Clerk, MMC 

87



ALABAMA TOURISM DEPARTMENT 
Tourism Legislative Grant Guidelines 

The 20 12 Touris~ll Legislative Grants Program is designed to attract out-of-state tourists and generate 
revenues by prornoti~~g attendance at attractioils and communitywide special events. 

Since out-of-state visitors spent Inore money than local attendees, the highest priorities will be given to 
attractions and events that bring tourists from other states. Grants will be capped at $25,000. 

It is probable that more lnoney will be requested than the amount appropriated by the Alabama Legislature. 
Every attempt will be made to disburse funds broadly and fairly across the state to non-profits and 
historical attractions. Sen. Arthur Orr and Rep. J~III Barton, who chair the General FLI I I~ ,  favor f~inding as 
111any different applications as possible. 

Sho~rld ~nilltiple applications from the same area be received, the highest priorities will be give11 to the 
project(s) with the potential of gellerati~lg the highest returi~s to the state's economy. This guideline tnay be 
waived depending on the total number of applicatiotls received. 

It should be noted that the amounts that applicants have received from the General Fund in the past will not 
be a factor in the arno~unts awarded in this process. 

The Alabatlla Historical Cornmission and the Alabatna Tourism Departlnerlt operate silllilar General Fund 
grant progralns filtlded by the Alabama Legislature. No applicant will receive grants fro111 both agencies. 

Please attach a letter of support from a Legislator from your district. 

A budget for your project should also be submitted. The deadline for applications is Septe~ilber 1,201 1 .  

If your project is approved by Alabama Tourism, you will be notified by the Legislator who wrote your 
support letter. F~ulds will be dispersed on a quarterly basis, as f ~ ~ n d s  are available froln the State Finance 
Department. 

PLEASE NOTE: A support letter from your Legislator must be submitted with this application. 
Any aljplication without a support letter will not be considered. 

Send questions to 

88



I, APPLYING FOR FUNDS 

Req~rests for 2012 Tourism Legislative Grarlt funds must be inade on an official form available 
fro111 the Alabarna Tourisin Department. No organization, nor any of its subdivisions or affiliated 
groups, will be approved for n~ore  than one Legislative grant (as described in this package) from the 
Alabarua Tourism Department. Each nonprofit organization will be required to srlblnit its tax- 
exempt identification nunlber or its tax exeinption letter from the Illternal Revenue Service. 

II. DEADLINES 

Please Note: Applications must be postmarked by September I, 201 1. 

III, DISTRIBUTION OF FUNDS 

The Tourisln Department will release no grant f ~ ~ n d s    until the applicant and the Tourisrn 
Department have received a f ~ ~ l l y  executed agreement signed by the grantee, the Director of the 
Tourisln Department, and the Governor of the State of Alabama. Funds will be disbursed on a 
quarterly basis as funds are available from the State Finance Department. 

V. USE OF FUNDS 

A. Attractions and Tourism Agencies -- 

1 )  Attractions and tourism agencies are eligible for f~inds for operations, marketing and 
progranl enkanceinents. 

B. Festivals atidlor Events -- 

1 )  Grant funds to be used for marl<eting community wide festivals andlor events. No 
monies sllall be used for talent or salaries or any other overllead costs. 

C. Local Gover~imental Orga~lizations - 

1)  Funds may be used for attractions or events as outlined above, or facility enhancements 
that will attract tourists or events. 

VI. SELECTION OF PROJECTS TO WE FUNDED 

A. All applications will be reviewed by the Alabama Tourisln Department and 
recomn1endations for f~inding will be based upon tile project's impact on tourism in 
Alabama. 

B. The Alabarna Tourisin Department will make recommendations for f~lnding of applications 
to the Governor for final approval. 

89



2012 TOURISM LEGISLATIVE @ NT APPLICATION 

Name of Applicant Organization: 

Federal Employer's identificatio~l N~unber (FEIN): 
(MANDATORY) 

Address: 

City: State: Zip: 

Project Director 

Work Telephone: Home Telepl~o~le: 

Fax: e-mail Address: 

Project Narne: 

Starting Date of Project: 

Estimated Colnpletio~l Date of Project: 

Date of Festival or Event: 

Attraction Name: 

So~lrce of Funds: 

Total Project Budget 
(Please Attach Budget) 

State Funds Requested $ maximum of $25,000 

Local Funds Provided $ 

Federal Funds $ Purpose 

Other State Funds $ P~urpose 

Otl~er Touris~n Grants $ Purpose 

90



10. Use of Funds (please cl~eck only one category): 

- grant for a maximum of 20% of overhead for Alabama attractions 
and tourisrn organizations. 

Festivals - marketing only, for community wide festivals. - 

- facility upgrade or marketing. - 

1 1. Please check one or all of the following as it pertains to your organization: 

Not-For-Profit as Registered with the Secretary of State of Alabama 

Date of Incorporation Charter # 

IRS Code 501(c), 3 ,4 ,  5, 6, 7, 10 (Not-For-Profit) 

Number 

Date of IRS Tax-Exempt Detern~ination Letter 

12. Narrative description and justification of project: 

13. Local Econo~nic Impact. Conlplete the following as it pertains to your project, i f  
available. This information will help determine priority in funding. 

A. Advertising Reach and Exposure 

Approxinlately liow many people presently visit your area, festival 
or attraction? 
Approxin~ately I1ow many visitors come to your area, festival, or attraction from 
outside Alabama? 
From outside your inl~vediate vicinity? 
Approxilnately how many overnigl~t visitors? 
Approximately how nnany nights do they stay? 
Approxi~nately how Inany hotel/motel, RV, B&B nights will be generated by this 
event? 
Will your prolnotion incl~tde group travel information? 
Will your prolnotion include lodging andlor restaurant infortnation? 

91



B. Taxes, Jobs and Expenditures 

Will this project create or sustain tourism-related jobs in  your area? 

Explain: 

How will this project affect the local atldlor state tax base? 

C. Benefit to Com~nunity 

1) What benefits will this project bring to your commutlity? 

2) Provide any additional comments that support the economic impact of this 
project. 

Project Director's Signature 

Title Date 

A support letter from your Legislator  nus st be submitted wit11 this ap~~lication. Any 
apl3lieation without a support letter will not be considered. 

BY SEPTEMBER 1,201 1 MAIL TO: 

Tourism Legislative Grant Progra~n 
Alabama Tour i s l~~  Department 

Post Office Box 4927 
Mo~ltgomery, AL 36 103 -4927 

Leigl~.Cross@,touris~~~.alaba~~~a.rzov 

INCOMPLETE APPLICATIONS WILL BE RETURNED 
92



2012 Tourism Legislative Grant Program 
Frequently Asked Questions 

1. Can I Inail my support letter froin my Legislator separately? 
Yes. As long as the support Ietter is received by September 1, 2011 

2. How will I know if lay grant is approved? 
The Alnbama Tourism Department will notify your Legislator and provide 
the contents of a letter that your Legislator ~vi l l  mail to you. The Tourisr.~ 
Department 1vil1 also send a news release, quoting your Legislator, of the 
grant approval. 

3. Should I contact my Legislator? 
The ordy reason you should contact your Legislator is to arrange for the 
sz4pport letter that accompanies yozir application. 

4. How will I know if I ail1 not approved? 
qjlour application does not meet the quallJication set in the guidelines, yozl 
tvill be notified by letterfiorn the Tourism Department and a copy will be 
sent to your Legislator. 

5 .  If I receive one of these Legislative Graiits am I eligible for otlier Tourism 
Department grants? 
Yes. Your organization will be able to apply for a n/lntcl?ing Grant for 
vu2arlzeting purposes such as brochure printing, web site development or out 
of state advertising. 

6. Can I receive all of my grant inoney in one payment? 
No. Funds are available to the Tourism Department 011 a quarterly basis 
only and will be distributed as such. 

7. What will deteriniiie liow much grant inoney I inay be awarded? 
The tola1 arnount of requests for this gr+antprograri~ will be n jbctor.. _Ifthe 
grant requests are more than the arnount offinds available, then sorne 
projects will be prorwted in order to fund as many reqzlests as possible. 

8. Will the grant program be repeated in 2013? 
Not lilzelj~. 

93



 

CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA 

ORDINANCE 2011-64 

 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

AN ORDINANCE TO ANNEX THE RIGHT OF WAY OF ALABAMA STATE 

HIGHWAY 181 FROM LAWSON ROAD SOUTH TO THE SOUTHERNMOST 

CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

WHEREAS, on the 25
th

 day of May, 2011, the State of Alabama, being the owner of the 

real property herein described, did file with the City a letter containing the signature of Vincent 

E. Calametti, P.E., an authorized agent of the State of Alabama Department of Transportation, 

and a map of said property showing its proximity to the corporate limits of the City of Daphne, 

Alabama, whereby the State of Alabama provided its consent to the annexation of said real 

property into the corporate limits of the City of Daphne, Alabama; and, 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Daphne, Alabama, desires to utilize said real property for the 

health, safety, and welfare purposes of providing fire and police protection; and, 

 

 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission of the City of Daphne, Alabama, at its regularly 

scheduled meeting of June 23, 2011, forwarded a unanimous favorable recommendation to the 

City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama for annexation of the areas shown in Exhibit “A”; 

and,  

 

 WHEREAS, after proper publication, a public hearing was held on August 1, 2011, by 

the City Council of the City of Daphne concerning said letter for annexation; and, 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Daphne determined it is in the public 

interest that said real property be annexed into the City of Daphne, Alabama and that all legal 

requirements for annexing said real property have been met pursuant to Sections 11-42-20 

through 11-42-24, Code of Alabama (1975).  

 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

 

 SECTION I:  ANNEXATION 

 

 The boundary lines of the City of Daphne, Alabama, be, and the same are hereby altered 

or rearranged as to include all of the territory heretofore encompassed by the corporate limits of 

the City of Daphne, Alabama and in addition thereto the following described territory, to-wit: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

94



 

 
ORDINANCE 2011-64              ANNEXATION ROW OF AL ST. HWY 181                 PAGE  2 

 

 

 

Name:   Right-of-Way of Alabama State Highway 181 from Lawson Road southward unto the  

              southernmost City limits 

 

Legal Description: BEGINNING AT THE POINT OF INTERSECTION OF THE SOUTH 

RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF LAWSON ROAD AND THE WEST RIGHT-OF-

WAY LINE OF STATE HIGHWAY 181 (FORMERLY COUNTY ROAD 27), 

SECTION 34, TOWNSHIP 4 SOUTH, RANGE 2 EAST, FOR THE POINT OF 

BEGINNING; THENCE RUN SOUTHERLY ALONG THE WEST RIGHT-

OF-WAY BOUNDARY LINE OF STATE HIGHWAY 181 TO THE POINT 

OF INTERSECTION OF THE SOUTH PROPERTY LINE OF OLDFIELD 

SUBDIVISION, PHASE ONE AS RECORDED WITH THE JUDGE OF 

PROBATE BALDWIN COUNTY, ALABAMA ON SLIDE 2328-C&D, 

SECTION 34, TOWNSHIP 5 SOUTH, RANGE 2 EAST; THENCE 

EASTERLY  TO THE POINT OF INTERSECTION OF THE SOUTH 

PROPERTY LINE OF DUNMORE SUBDIVISION, PHASE ONE AS 

RECORDED WITH THE JUDGE OF PROBATE BALDWIN COUNTY, 

ALABAMA ON SLIDE 2414-A&B, SECTION 35, TOWNSHIP 5 SOUTH, 

RANGE 2 EAST; THENCE NORTHERLY ALONG THE EAST RIGHT-OF-

WAY BOUNDARY LINE OF STATE HIGHWAY 181 TO THE POINT OF 

THE PROJECTED INTERSECTION OF THE EAST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE 

OF STATE HIGHWAY 181 AND THE SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF 

LAWSON ROAD; THENCE WEST TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 

 

Being contiguous to the Corporate Limits of the City of Daphne, Alabama. 

 

SECTION II:  PUBLICATION 

 

 This ordinance shall be published as provided by law, and a certified copy of the same 

shall be filed with the Probate Court of Baldwin County, Alabama. 

 

SECTION III: SEVERABILITY 

 

 The provisions of this Ordinance are severable.  If any section, subsection, sentence, 

clause, phrase, or portion of this Ordinance is for any reason held invalid or unconstitutional by 

any court of competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct, and 

independent provision and such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions 

thereof. 

 

 

SECTION IV: EFFECTIVE DATE 

 

This Ordinance shall become effective immediately and be in full force after final 

passage and publication as required by law. 

 

 

 

95



 

ORDINANCE 2011-64              ANNEXATION ROW OF AL ST. HWY 181                 PAGE  3  
 

  

 

 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA ON THIS THE ____ DAY OF ____________, 2011. 

 

 

_______________________________ 

       CATHY S. BARNETTE  

COUNCIL PRESIDENT 

        

 

 

 

       _______________________________ 

       FRED SMALL, 

       MAYOR 

        

 

 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

__________________________ 

DAVID COHEN, 

CITY CLERK, MMC 

 

  

96



LEGAL DESCWTION: 

B E G m m G  AT THE POINT OF ISJTERSECTION OF THE SOUTH R1Gm-OF--WAU LINE OF 
LAWSON ROAD TED2 VIEST HGHT-OF-WAY Lmi OF STATE m G W A Y  185 

COUNTY ROAD 24), SECTION 34, TOWSI* 4 SOUTH, -RANGE 2 EAST, FOR 
TEE POIWT OF 

ATE H G W A Y  181 TO TEE POINT OF mmRSECnON OF 
SOUTH PROPERTY LINE OF OLDFIELD SmDmSION,  PHASE ONE AS E C O m E D  WITH 
TEE JUDGE OF PROBATE COUNTY, &BM ON SLIDE 2328- 
T O W S W  5 SOUTH, EAST; THENCE EASTERLY TO 
MTERSECTION OF SOUTH PROPER$"d LINE OF D W O W  SmDMSION, PEASE ONE 
AS RECORDED JUDGE OF PROBATFIE BALD ON SLIDE 
2414-A&B, SECTION 35, T O W S m  5 SOUTH, 2 EAST; T?3ENCE N O R T E K Y  ALONG 
THE EAST NGHT-OF-WAY B OF STATE m G W A Y  181 TO THE POMT OF 

PROmCTED NTERSECTI T HGm-OF-WAY LINE OF STATE m G m A Y  
SOUTH NGm-OF-WAY LINE OF LAWSON ROAD; 

PgbllPdT OF BE G. 

97



ORDINANCE 2011- 65 
 

Daphne Utilities Real Property Transfer:  Johnson Road Lift Station / Art 
Guild – Survey & Plat Work    

 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2010-71 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2011 
Budget on December 20, 2010; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2011 budget, the City 
Council has determined that certain appropriations are required and should be 
approved and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2011 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council has previously approved a land swap between the 
City and the Daphne Utility Board in Resolution No. 2011-42 for the following 
properties: Johnson Road Lift Station for the Art Guild property behind City Hall; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the land transfer required official Survey and Plat work to be done at a 
cost of $9,077.61; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City and the Utility Board have agreed to split the cost for the 
Survey and Plat work. 
  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, that an appropriation of $4,538.81 from the General Fund for the Survey 
and Plat work for the land transfer is hereby approved. 
 
  
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 
Daphne, Alabama, this   ____     day of ________________    , 2011. 
 
         
                                                                       ________________________________         

Cathy S. Barnette, Council President 
                       
 

_________________________________ 
                                                                       Fred Small, Mayor 
           
 
ATTEST: 
___________________________ 
David L. Cohen,  
City Clerk MMC 

98



ORDINANCE 2011-66  
 

Lodging Tax Appropriation 
Bayfront Richard Scardamalia Pavilion Building Stair Replacement 

 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2010-71 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2011 Budget on 
December 20, 2010; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2011 budget, the City Council has 
determined that certain appropriations are required and should be approved and made a part of the 
Fiscal Year 2011 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, Lodging Tax funds may be used for the purchase, development, and maintenance of 
waterfront property; and 
 
WHEREAS, it has been determined stair replacements are needed for safety purposes at the 
Bayfront Richard Scardamalia Pavilion Building; and  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama, that 
the Fiscal Year 2011 Budget is hereby amended to include an additional Lodging Tax appropriation  
in the amount of $2,500 for stair replacements at the Bayfront Richard Scardamalia Pavilion 
Building. 
 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama, 
this   ____     day of  ________________    , 2011. 
         
 

                                                                      
_________________________________ 

                                                                      Cathy S. Barnette, Council President 
     

_________________________________ 
                                                                       Fred Small, Mayor 
 
           
ATTEST: 
___________________________ 
David L. Cohen, City Clerk, MMC 

99



 
 
 
 
 

ORDINANCE 2011- 67 
 
 

An Ordinance Extending Fiscal Year 2011 Budget Authority 
 
 
 
WHEREAS, Fiscal Year 2012 will begin October 1, 2011; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Fiscal Year 2012 budget will not be approved and adopted by 
October 1, 2011 by the Daphne City Council; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is necessary to extend the authority of the Fiscal Year 2011 
budget in order to continue essential departmental operations pending the 
approval and adoption of the Fiscal Year 2012 budget. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and City Council of the 
City of Daphne, Alabama, that departmental operations shall continue under the 
authority of the Fiscal Year 2011 budget until such time as the Fiscal Year 2012 
budget is adopted but not to extend past January 1, 2012. 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Daphne this 
_____ day of ____________, 2011. 
 
                

                                                                                                            
________________________________ 

      Cathy S. Barnette, Council President 
             
            
      ________________________________ 
      Fred Small, Mayor 
       
 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________ 
David L. Cohen 
City Clerk, MMC 
 

100


	City Roll Call.pdf
	COUNCIL MINUTES  September 6.pdf
	Proclamation -  Rich Wright.pdf
	Mayors Resignation Letter.pdf
	Backup to Mayors Resignation Letter. Jays Memo.pdf
	Reporting of Standing Committees.pdf
	Finance Minutes - 2011-09-12.pdf
	Backup to Finance Minutes.pdf
	Building & Property Minutes.pdf
	Public Works Minutes - August 15.pdf
	Special Reports.pdf
	Library Board Minutes - july 2011.pdf
	Library Board Minutes - aug 2011.pdf
	Utility Minutes - July.pdf
	Mayors Report.pdf
	City Attorneys and Department Head Report.pdf
	RESOLUTION - ORDINANCES - DIVIDER PAGE.pdf
	2011-66 - RES -  Intersection Imprv US98  CR64-2011.pdf
	2011-67 - RES - ADEM Redesignation PhI to Ph2 MS4.pdf
	2011-68 Resolution for Tourism.pdf
	Tourism Grant.pdf
	2011-64 - ORD - ANNEXTION - NLDHwy18190ROWSouthRev0627.pdf
	Backup to 2011-64 - ORD.pdf
	2011-65 - ORD - Utility Board Property Swap Survey Cost - Johnson Road-Art Guild.pdf
	2011-66 -ORD -  Lodging Tax Fund-Bay Front Pavillion Stairs.pdf
	2011-67 - ORD -  CONTINUE 2011 BUDGET AUTHORITY.pdf



